
7:00 PM

7:05 PM*

7:10 PM

7:15 PM

7:45 PM

8:00 PM

8:20 PM

8:25 PM

8:30 PM

Town ofAyer

Board of Selectmen

Ayer Town Hall - 1st Floor Meeting Room

Ayer, MA 01432

Tuesday Septembet 15. 2015

Open Session MeetingAgenda

Call to Order
Review and Approve Agenda

Anno uncements

Public Input

Chief William_A. Muttay, Ayef PoIic^Department

1. Per Diem Dispatcher Appointment
2. Patrol Cruise.1: Purchase Order Appfoval

Mt. David Maher and Ms. Alicia Hefsev, Office of _C&mmumtv and

Economic Development

1. CDBG Loan Assumption

2. Promotion of Ms, ABcia Hersey

3. Signing of the 2015 CDBG Grant

Personnel Boa.td Presentation of Non-Union Compensation Study

Seven Point ofMassachusetts^Inc.

1. Presentation for Proposed Medical Marijuana Facility

Town Administtatot's Report

1. Adminisu-ative Update

2. Credit Card Policy

3. Nuisance Bylaw Discussion

New Business/ Selectmenls 0 uestions

1. Compliance with MGL Chapter 32B 9 A l/2 (Selectman Luca)

Approval of the Minutes
September 1, 2015

Adjoutnment

w -^
^ o"r).m~t3 ^^^

cOT'
71P<
>.mrr>

3£ -<:30'0

u? 3s

*No^: Agenda Times are for phnningpwposes only and do not necessarily constitute exact times



AVER POLICE DEPARTMENT
54 Park Street • Ayer, Massachusetts 01432-1161

Tei. (978) 772-8200 • Fax (978) 772-8202

William A. Murray
Chief of Police

To: Board of Selectmen
From: Chief William A. Murray
CC: TA Pontbriand, file
Date: September 9, 2015
Re: Per Diem Dispatcher Appointment

Upon the elevation of Christopher Herrstrom to Full Time Dispatcher status we needed to replace his
position in the Per Diem Dispatcher pool. From our previous pool of potential per diem candidates, we
identified Cheryl Shraison as a viable person to fill that void.

Cheryl is not unknown to the PD as she has assisted us on several community oriented endeavors such as
the Department's successful RAD program. Cheryl Is a resident ofLunenburg and worked for many years
at the local Hannaford Supermarket before having to be relocated to the Leominster branch.

Cheryl was interviewed by Lt. Gill and Dispatcher Johnna Brissette and both feel that she will be able to
learn the skills necessary to be an Ayer Per Diem Dispatcher. She has no formal experience in emergency
dispatching and will have to attend the 200 hour Massachusetts State 911 Public Safety Communications
Academy, beginning in October.



Purchase Order
Date: 9/8/2015
P0#: 2383

Ayer Police Department
54 Park St
Ayer, Ma 01432
978-772-8200 ext 502
978-772-8201 (F)
b9ill@ayer.ma.us

ig Method

Vendor: MHQ
401 Elm St
Marlborough, Ma 01752

Attn: Steve Spokowski
508-573-2600
(f) 508-573-2728

8hippmg_Terms

Ship To:
Ayer Police Dept.
54 Park St
Ayer, Ma 01432
978-772-8200

Attn: Brian Gill

|Best Method
Payment

|Net 30

Quote

Dated 5/5,15 Per GBPC Procurement Contract

Quaatily
i.ool
i.ool
i.ool

Item Description

2016 Ford Interceptor Utility V6 AWD

Accessories: As Outlined In Quote

Trade In 2005 Ford Crown Vie 80K Miles

Unit
$25,943.01

$13.043.01

-$400.0l

Subtotal

Tax

Freight
Total

\mount

$25,943.00
$13,043.00

-$400.00

$0,00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

-$38,586.00
-$~0^0

$0.00
$38,586.00

1, Enter this order In accordance with the prices/ terms, delivery method/ and specifications listed above,

2. Please notify us immediately If you are unable to ship as specified.

3. send ail correspondence

[Brian Gill]

[54 Park St]

[Ayer, Ma 01432]
Phone [978-772-8200]

Fax [978-772-8202]

f/i^^
Date

^5
^^^il



VEHICLES B EQUIPMENT H GEAR

May 5, 2015

Sergeant Mike Edmonds
Ayer Police Department

Dear Sergeant Edmonds,

x-505 978-772-8200

medmonds@ayer.ma.us

MI-IQ offers the following quote under the Greater Boston Police Council bid:

2016 Ford Interceptor Utility V6 all wheel drive Black
Pre-drilled headlight housings to accoiiunodate hideaways
Dark car feature
LED driver side pillar mounted spot light
Full style wheel covers
Heated mirrors
Reverse sensing
Back up camera standard
Noise suppression bonding straps
Rear door interior handles disabled
Rear door window switches disabled
Power driver seat, CD player, red/white nite dome (front) & fall spare tire
5 year/lOOk mile powertrain waiTanty $0 deductible
Install 2 way police radio
Install portable radio charger
Pat'ol Power distribution system

Additional paint (roof & 4 doors white)
Front & rear window vent shades

Graphics package C
Class II trailer hitch
Air bag cut off switch
Liberty LED light bar with Cencom siren, switching & public address
(2) blue/cleai' split LED hideaways in front corners
(4) LED 1-ddeaways rear; red in directional, blue/clear in back ups

Blue clear split LED push bar lights
Blue LED IONS rear roofline
Blue LED IONS lower interior rear gate

Blue LED mirror lights
lOOw siren speaker on push bar

10s recessed prisoner ^^^t^h dual el^j
Rear transport seat v^yargo sWunty CE
Rear door window
Jotto center console

Armrest
Dual external cup holders

rack (8

4D1 ELM STREET MARLBDROUGH, MA D 1752 503-573-2600 U WWW.MH^l.CDM



VEHICLES B EQUIPMENT H BEAR

Push bar
Clear LED IONS recessed in push bar
Blue/clear split LINZ6 LED side push bar lights
3db (5db) gain antemia
Transfer radar
Heavy duty computer stand
Universal mounting tray
Transfer computer

TOTAL ESTIMATE:

Please review and advise if you have any questions or need any changes

Sincerely,

Steve Spokowski
Fleet Account Manager

275
345
241
70
50

575
195
175

$38,986

phone: 508-573-2628 email:sspokowslci@mhq.com

OPY
-401 ELM STREET S MARLBDRDUGH, MAD1752 M 503-573-2600 8 WWW.MH^.CDM



Michael Edmonds

From:

Sent:

To:

Steven W, Spokowski <sspokowski@MHQ.com>

Thursday, August 20, 2015 8:41 AM
Michaei Edmonds (medmonds@ayer.ma.us)

Mike,

Got your email. I prefer to bill out the vehicle after it is complete in case there are any changes from the originai

quote. We have a new computer system and we are working through the bugs. It is very difficult to add or change

things once the order is in,

The Trade would be $400.

Steve

Steve Spokowski
Account Manager
401 Elm Street Mariborough MA 01752 j Phone 508-573-2628

vcHm.^i u irgu.p^i^T y i^:Ap pax 508-573-2728

sspQl<Q.wsM@mhQ^m I www.mho.com Facebook

OPY



cr-p ^ p -".:^^
th ;.-'-^

".:; "M ^".: .

Town of Ayer
Office of Community & Economic Development
Town Hall + One Main Street * Ayer, MA 01432 + 978-772-8206 • Fax: 978-772-8208

TO: Ayer Board of Selectmen

FR: David Maher

RE: Alicia Hersey, Promotion from current position

Cc: Robert Pontbriand

DT: September 10, 2015

Honorable Board Members:

As Director of both the Office of Economic and Community Development, I have had the opportunity to work
directly with two excellent associates, Ms. Sue Provencher and Ms. Alicia Hersey.

Over the past three years, Ms. Hersey had not only had the opportunity to work with Ms. Provencher, who
shared and mentored Ms. Hersey with her experience and background, but since she retired, Ms. Hersey
herself has continued to do an excellent job in her own right. The Department has continued to be very
productive and successfuf as is evident by the awarding of our latest grant, which both Ms. Hersey and I put in
a great amount of time and effort to successfully achieve.

Upon further discussion of Ms. Hersey's status and title within the Department with Town Administrator
Pontbriand, I would like the Board of Selectmen to strongly consider reclassifying Ms. Hersey from her current
Administrative Assistant position to Program Manager, which is the long range plan that was presented to the
Board of Selectmen by Ms. Provencher and I when Ms. Hersey was hired with the knowledge that Ms.
Provencher would soon be retiring.

Ms. Hersey would still report first to me as Director with both of us being responsible to the Town Administrator
and his oversight.

Please see the following attachment that not only outlines the many positive ramifications of this change,but
also outlines the change in compensation (totally funded through the grant) that would take place with your
decision to promote.

In conclusion, I would be asking the Board to make a motion to "Promote Ms. Hersey from Administrative
n^istant to Community Development Program Manager with associated hourly compensation". Thank you.

~)^m^L^
David Maher
Town of Ayer
Office of Community and Economic Development



Employee Promotion within the Community Development Department

Ms. Hersey to be promoted from Administrative Assistant to Program Manager

® Ms. Hersey has served the Town in her capacity for over 3 years, 6 months as assistant to Ms.
Provencher and 24 months with full responsibility reporting to the Director

• The Ayer program has continued to be very active, not only with the compietion of our 2011
grant with additional program income funds that called for reopening that grant cycle , but also
with the successful application of a new 2015 grant which the Town recently received

» Within the application itself, the management structure calls for at least a Program Manager to
be in place to oversee all the responsibilities of the grant administration

< With a Program Manager in place, this also signals to the Department of Housing and
Community Development in Boston, that the Ayer Administration has a responsible employee
in place to manage the funds awarded to the Town through this program

Outline in the Change of Salary

Currently as Administrative Assistant
Ms. Hersey is paid on an hourly basis: $20.11 per hour for 24 hours (16 hours charged to

Community Development/ 8 hours charged to Economic Development)

Promotion to Program Manager
(Classification pertheAFSCME 93 Town Hall/Clerical Union Contract)

For the Community Development Department: Ms. Hersey's rate would go from her current rate of
$20.11 to $27.15 and her hours would be would be no less than 16 and no more than 32 depending
on the week to week, month to month workload for the grant and office administration.

For the Economic Development Department (per the 2015/2016 Ayer Budget): Ms. Hersey's rate
would remain at $20.11 for 8 hours of related time.

Between the responsibilities of both Departments, Ms. Hersey's hours would never exceed 40 hours.

This plan of hourlyjime and houriv salary adjustment has been discussed extensively within the
Department and the aim is to get maximum long term time and money administration from the current
program income and the anticipated 2015 grant funds, for the continuation and success of the
Department.

David Maher
Director, Community and Economic Development
Town of Ayer



Town of Ayer
Department of Planning & Development
Town Hall • One Main Street + Ayer, MA 01432 • 978-772-8221 • 978-772-8208 (fax)

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Selectmen

FR: Allcia Hersey, Community Development Assistant

RE: CDBG Loan Assumption

DT: September 10,2015

The Town through the CDBG rehabilitation program rehabbed a home at 3 Groton
Harvard Road in March of 2010 for Joseph and Patricia Sidelinger. We have been
notified that both Mr. & Mrs. Sidelinger are deceased and their daughter is
purchasing the home from the Estate. As stated in the Promissory Note signed by
Mr. & Mrs. Sidelinger, "In the event of sale or transfer of an owner-occupied

structure to an immediate family member, I shall not be obligated to repay the
Loan, provided that the transferee assumes all my obligations under this
Promissory Note, the Mortgage, and Loan Agreement." At this point in time we

are preparing the Loan Assumption Documents to move forward with this transfer
to the daughter, Ms. Tricia Walsh.

Request the Board ofSelectmen vote to approve the assumption of the Loan

for 3 Groton Harvard Road, Ayer MA.



^ p ';^r->
'J - w .' ^

Town of Ayer
Office of Community & Economic Development "
Town Hall • One Main Street • Ayer, MA 01432 • 978-772-8206 + Fax: 978-772-8208

TO: Ayer Board of Selectmen

FR: David Maher

RE: Signing the 2015 CDBG Community Development Grant

Cc: Robert Pontbriand

DT: September 10, 2015

Honorable Board members:

It's with great anticipation and excitement that I submit to you, for signature by the
Chair, Ayer's upcoming 2015 $900,000 CDBG grant.

The areas of the document that need to be signed have been tabbed and once the
signatures have been completed Ms. Hersey will mail the document back to the
Division of Community Services at DHCD.

The upcoming grant is going to be very beneficial not only to the Pleasant Street area
but also to all the rehab that will be taking place for ourAyer citizens who will also be
served.

/ja^(^o^ -^^

David Maher
Town of Ayer
Office of Community and Economic Development



USING pBprenis GRID

FT2015 FYMllS FTZ016 FnflIE

vlcaMl Annual Salary Roctau AnnualSalary AnnuaIS-ilarf Rtdau AnnualSdafT
ide/ hours {baaad on 52.2 woks) Grada/ (bard on SI.Z wmlu) (based on 52.2 woafc;] Srada/ (ba«l on SZ-! mikt)
ig_worktd (bnfarc HRSImp-icl) Stop _fta per PB Fimnda! Impact (boforn MRS Impact) ,. _ Sttp _Ai p*r PB Flnamda] Impn

AdmlnlrtrstiucAaita-aratnFIrcChtaf 6/9 30 532,416.20 8/3 S3S,64B.SB 533,058.26 8/10 540,402.30 $7.3dt,M
Poncci'cptOfflciiMan.ieiTlni-w/r.ic.int) 40 543,^1.60 B/ll S51.341.B4 Sd3,a06.00 clilBfbudgnHHl S/mln S43^06.0<] bisod nn newlilrc.'ths dnsca smp u G/a SO.OO B/mln l5S43,13S.OS

Payroll &Boniif[t5ManaE[ir W S6I.1?U3 S/ SS1,434.39 $62,663.0 WWmlf S6;,6S3,43 rod [Ini-d 50,00
OPW Business M-inaEar 40 S6;,43UO B/ S6I.'l3I,20 S63,6B4.00 B/Z%onIy 563,664.00 nad BBcd SD.M

Grade S
eiccutlue Aisbunt taTA/BOSSacmtar/ S/9 40 i34,lB3.GD 9/11 S53.531.52 SSS,ZG9,3G 9/11 560,750^0 i5,4c

(dacs not indudc 2BA nlpcnd SS.PS/holir)

SM.SSi.OC S7.704.72

$74^36.45 rodllncd SO.OO 18 hours/40 liounucliir);
SSB^Se.72 iSW.71 23hour3/40hour;tD[:alloai

$6SA56.72 S4.7S9.72

11/6 W S6S,W,9Z 12/S S6S,361.12 SSS,736.96 12/6 $7WEJU6 S2,714.40 l/2E<incr.ll fund; 1/2 UBAG
11/4 W SB1.679.52 12/4 S6S,630.72 SS4,790.6d U/5 S6S,71U2 eradall S4,gi7.68

Pa;

Sl:

Tm
T;
Tro;

Gl

El
Fai

Grs

Pol
Inft

G;

•b.

id i

id<

& nccrca

u

aerk/Co

12
•&

:ilmm01rma

ids 13

Ass™ ;Adr
Iteo

Ida 14
OFW Supcrfnti
To\

Gr;

Fin

Sl

ad«15
aChm!

id i

Chlafi

Sl
Tw

id.

16
of Police

17
AAnInfc!

I Dll

immUnrty D?/ LilfE

ichnoloEY Dlractor

ant/Ffna nco M a nag

.ratnr

Supplor
Depart

cm 300- Public Sitay

.ent 4m. Puhll; War'i^,

.cntEWl-HumanScrula

iflflt 600 -M

532,416.20 8/3
E43.m.60 B/ll
siii.aaui s/
S 6;,43UO B/

S34,1B3.GD 9/11

S50,G75.7E 10/6

i72,B7B.93 II/
S61.21S.70 11/7

S61.21B.70 11/7

S 6S,W,9Z 12/S
S 61.679.52 12/4

SB2,52ZJ.6 13/11
SB2.623.1G 13/H
571,311^2 13/5

}91,79SSS 14/11
S9d,899.60 Id/11

S94.S39.GO 15/9

S1C5.S73.6S 16/9

S32.53S.70 17/5

S1.346.1M.ZS

ifimBltraiinndln FYZ015

S3S.64B.SB
S51.341.B4

SS1.434.39

SSI.dSI.lO

S53.531.52

iEMoo.st

S72,B7S.93
W5.270SS
Ses.voss

S6S.361.12

S6S,630.72

Sa7.236,6'l
SS7.236.64

S75.Z30.64

S95.343.60
SSS.943.50

sioo.43z.aa

S 110,436.3 6

Sno.a7S.36

Sl,it35,3M,S3

SB9.aS6.St

S33.05B.26
Sd3,a06.00 clilBfbudgnHHl

$62,663.0
S63.6B4.00

SSS,ZG9,3G

S53.S47.2a

S7i.33E.45
$52,444^00

S63.4S7.00

SSS,736.96
SS4.790.6d

$54,292.56
SS4.292.56
?7S,DTa,3;

S3 7,339,76
S96,7S9.6B

S96.797.07

Si07.7S7.2S

S9it.a73.17

Sl,iSS,521.S;

8/10
S/mFn

WWmlf
B/ IV, only

9/11

10/7

II/ W, only
11/9
11/S

12/6
U/5

13/11
13/11

13/S

14/11
14/11

l5/t0

15/10

1,7/6

U/1 W SB2,52ZJ.6 13/11 587.236,64 $54,292.56 13/11 $68,927.52 $4.635,36
12/5 W SBZ.623.1G 13/U SS7,236.64 SS4,292.56 13/11 $88^27^1 54,635.36
13/i 40 571,311^2 13/5 S75.Z30.64 $-fS,a-m.3-i 13/S ;7S,S13.20 S542.3S

f37f33.7& rri lined $0,03
S97.aa5.44 S1.0BS.76

$105,026.40 $8.^19.33

SU5,SOB.16 $7.72050

ill3,lH.<4 $30,73Z.,;7

Scl
Tmunarrk
pubUisBulMnesS.Pmpt.rri'Miiraonari.

TownAccount^rrt

BmofIB B: Paynsll
AsiKsors

iDi

PubllclWorks-AiimInbtriittan

Piirks Dopjrtmont

ntal

°EY

Total Genera] Fund impact

Total UDAG impact

Total all funds

S2E,3;3.71
SI.E15.7;
S4.927.EE

S1.0S5.76

So.oo
S4.635.36
S3.137.00
S4.783.72

S12.35S.26
S15.573.S7

So.oo

E7.704.72

51,357.30

$512^5

Sa5.009.8S

$1.357,20

$BG,367.0B

SI6.22t.OO
S2.61S.OO
Si.sis.oo

S1.0B6.00
So.oo

$4.635.00
Sus7.(m
E4.790.tl0

S12.356.00
S 15,571.00

So.oo

S7.705.00

S543.00

SS5.D11.DO for-

S1.357.DO BoS

S36.3 66.00

Sl^n^assa $BE,36T.ns



Seven Point oflVlassachusetts, Inc.

About Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc.: Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. ("Seven Point")

is a Massachusetts not-for-profit corporation that is currently applying for a Registered
Marijuana Dispensary (RMD) registration through the Massachusetts Department of Public
Health (DPH). Seven Point is interested in opening a cultivation location in the Town ofAyer,
Massachusetts. Seven Point is seeking a letter of support or non-opposition from the Town of

Ayer.

Brad Zcrman (CEO): Brad Zerman is founder and CEO of Seven Point of Massachusetts and a
Chicago-Area-based medical cannabis dispensary. Mr. Zerman is also founder and CEO of

Qualtex Corp. (dba Sky Processing), also based in Chicago. Mr. Zcnnan has a strong
background in merchant payment processing since founding his first company in 1991.
Currently, Sky Processing operates automated teller machines (ATMs) in the United States and
Puerto Rico. Mr. Zcrman is an active member of the Chicago community. He is a founder, past

President, and Board Member of the East Wicker Park Organization and helps run the Graceland
West Community Association, as an active Council Member of the neighborhood association.
Mr. Zerman served in 2014 in the JCC PresenTense Program as a mentor and then in 2015 as a
judge on a Shark Tank-style event where Fellows in the Program compete for which venture will
bring about the most social change. Mi'. Zerman is currently a Director of the Giving Rocks
Foundation, a non-profit organization.

Ryan Goldstein (CFO): Mr. Goldstein has over 20 years of experience in the real estate
industry and currently is Founder and President ofRWG Realty Company LLC. RWG Realty
Company LLC focuses on Land Development, Property Management, Real Estate Brokerage,
and Investment. Before getting into the real estate industry, Mr. Goldstem worked for
Neofonna.com, a B2B healthcare company. Mr. Goldstein was a team member in the medical

equipment auction division. Mr. Goldstein is an active fundraiser and donor to the Lynn Sage
Cancer Research Foundation at Northwestern Hospital as well as the Renee Israel Foundation.

Marie Swain (COO): Ms. Swain was the assistant manager of a medical camiabis dispensary in
Portsmouth, Rhode Island where she also served as the acting manager for several months during
personnel changes. She focused heavily on patient education and interacted with roughly 20 to
30 patients daily providing counseling and answering questions on the differences in strain types
as well as general differences between sativa and indica strains. In addition, Ms. Swain oversaw
the production of all in-house MIPS

Steven Hickox (Director of Cultivation): Steven Hickox is a founding member of Medicinal
Wellness Center, LLC (dba Green Cross Super Store), which was founded in June 2010 for the
purpose of operating a vertically integrated marijuana business in the State of Colorado. Since
receiving its first license m August 2010, the company has experienced consistent growth and
continues to be successful. Currently, Medicinal Wellness Center has annual gross revenues of

$8 million dollars and 37 full-time employees throughout 4 retail stores and 3 grow warehouses
located in the Denver area. Mr. Hickox is responsible for the day to day operations of the
company, including the site locations and corporate finance matters. His responsibilities also
include overseeing licensing requirements and ensuring regulatory compliance throughout the

Seven Point of Massachusetts, inc. Page 1 of 31



company. To date, the Medicinal Wellness Center has had no licensing or regulatory violations.
As a managing member of the company, he is involved in both the retail and growing operations
of the business, and visits all sites and locations on a bl-weekly basis at a minimum.

Mitch Suzan (Director of Security): Mr. Suzan served with the Town ofMattapoisett Police
Department for 27 years. As a Senior Patrolmen, he was responsible for responding to various

emergency situations, taking appropriate action when necessary. Mr. Suzan conducted

investigations leading to numerous arrests. He served as the Old Rochester Regional School
District's Resource Officer for 13 years, serving as a liaison between the Mattapoisett Police
Department, school administration, students, parents, town departments, community

organizations, and the court system. Mr. Suzan was an active SWAT member for six years in the
SEMLEC (Southeastern Massachusetts Law Enforcement Council) and hostage negotiation
trained by the FBI. Prior to joining the Mattapoisett Police Department, Mr. Suzan was a United
States Army Militaiy Police Investigator from 1984-1987 in the 1 MP Company at Port Rlley,

Junction City, Kansas.

Location: Seven Point intends to secure a commercial property in Ayer as a cultivation site. The
following two (2) properties are being considered by Seven Point (listings and radius siting maps
are attached):

• 31 Willow Road (pre-existing building)
• 99 Fitchburg Road (land)

Financials: Per the DPH requirements, $500,000 has been committed to Seven Point. Seven
Point is in the process of raising several million dollars of additional capital to operate a world-
class facility in the Town ofAyer.

Benefits to Ayer: Potential property taxes; donations from Seven Point once profitable; jobs
with benefits for local residents; and the ability to exercise control through local regulatory
authority.

Security: The Regulations for the Medical Use of Marijuana Program have detailed security
requirements located at 105 CMR 725.110. An outline, describing how Seven Point will comply,
is attached along with an example of the security overlay for Mr. Zerman's Chlcago-area
medical marijuana dispensary. These requirements include limiting access to those authorized
under the Program; prohibiting on-site consumption; destruction of excess marijuana; and
storage of money and medicine in vaults. In addition. Seven Point will work with Ayer Police
Department to address any and all concerns of the Town.

Process: On June 29, 2015 Seven Point submitted their Application of Intent for a RMD
location. Seven Point has since been invited by the DPH to submit the second phase of the

application process, the Management and Operations Profile. Upon DPH review of the
Management and Operations Profile, Seven Point expects to be invited to submit the third and
final phase of the application process, the Siting Profile. One of the requirements for the Siting
Profile is obtaining a letter of support or non-opposition from the proposed municipality.

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 2 of 31



Program: The Medical Marijuana Program in Massachusetts is one of the most highly regulated
programs in the country. The program is designed to provide safe medicine (tested for pesticides,
metals, microbes and concentration) exclusively to patients who have been approved by their
doctors and the Massachusetts Department of Public Health. Additionally, the program requires
implementation of a real time "seed to sale" tracking system, which securely tracks and controls
marijuana from the time it is planted until the time it is sold to patients for medical use.

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 3 of 31



For Sale
or Lease

31 Willow Road
i

A^er, Massachusetts

-A-ST

^1
• KH—T

•^-a??W^»^aB*w^'3£:

21,000 s.f.

Industrial Building

ManuIacUiring/WareIiouse facility on

7 at • res

Permits in place to add 26,000 s.f.

119, (;lictmci<o"J
niKflbtiri] ^^

Lilllctnn

ht;lon
^-Bc'uiroK^

'^95;
G'on^oFt) 2

•yjl

Easy access to Route 2 and 1-495

Exclusive Listing Agent:

THE STUBBLEBINE COMPAJNY
CORTAC INTERNATIONAL

r^llf;!-

WSfcSi

l,90.^

-^-^^5^iT^.35?%»F'iE"!^?1

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc.

Ffimhlfn

Page 4 of 31



'4»t...

SPECIFICATIONS:

Size:

Office:

Subdivision;

Tenant:

Site:

Power:

Height:

Year Built:

Utilities:

Loading:

Roof:

Sprinkler:

Lease Rate:

Sale:

Other:

21,000 s.f. (150' x 140')

2,000 s.f.

17,150 s.f., 10,500 s.f. or 6,650 s.f.

Existing tenant in 3,850 s.f.

7 acres

1600 amp, 208 3 phase

16'clear

1984

Town water/sewer

Two (2) tailbord with levelers, one (1) drive-in and one (1) over-sized door

EPDM with ballast, reinforced to accomodate solar panels

Wet

$4.75 per s.f.NNN

$1,790,000

Sale includes building with permits to add 26,500 s.f. or industrial condominiums

and single family house on lot which can accomodate another 10,000 s.f. building.

Exclusive Listing Agent:

THE STUBBLEBINE COMPANY
CORFAC INTERNATIONAL

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 5 of 31



w

8'x 9'OVERHEAD
9^DOOR

FUTURE DOCK
DOORS (^3)

K^~;. __-___..._.. ....._. -.sr££ :,-..,

(.^ (1.5) (2 S-i) (t) (»i (7) Cs)



LOCATION

I

3\

•^<-.
^•^'1..

~.T~7f

•h
»•

S<T-.- '

l^-'- -^l.'.

>

. Ul.1.1 I.,

"^
^

^v "TWyn-i-Tn-

L —_'^ .^'^ SITEi^
^..

/?'1%^ lf

:.^'"'^.*f\'\^
•! .r .- ~<.ri^-. TSk

^•^u^>?:Ll't'f ^\ .'
I?"" <f>l^:'l'^©-^/'

ss. ...wr'l-<-to
_!_.

co '-.iiiiin

w'. ^
i:-^^. ,"•'

to n-

'.^ X'

',' '

69

j495.^
//--;. "^

«•

>/l..<lt,;^. *

IV1" .^. •:"""""'< -1' '•

HnlvKlll ^.\ 4ffWl'flt,,n,l

*,-";/'-
l',ltnntl..iH'i

•-..^^^^
^pssy:.•v'^.,^, ^M^w? ,^

''.GoitiniRn'-s : .Y.

•.. •t^?y^^&;l':-;;'l'^^ ^
< ~" .^L :'"^:r.. rs • .A,,^: • •;i;l.r'f"l';"lv >.':, '•:';'" ;S£G^, /

(".c,n'if?rv,i)[nn i J.'L '' . '.'' //'T W\ Hil' ' "'.'.,1 .''.', . - "'>'<•

^\ ...'-T'
y *. ..'*'

.y T~
// ..!'" '

^^^, '"
•^ ^^•"•'":"-:"1

^ ^v . ^
'^/' \

Fill"

•^^ ' .': .

•^'./" ^. •''•/'•I F<'1' ' [';'111.""1

a3S.vlf'<!'"i(-'^ ''. *

^.i-iwi,..

f '.%, ^ •

»
'K.'n|fnT7iii

l.r.rt

0 ^^^"^ ^ ^'*.- '
.W Ti"Mrt">. -•• ••

llw ' 4
^hrnn.'tnfi

:.*' . tf1^"'^'!^ ^"

A-

d?
7H.!p/firriW7

>''-<1-<•t' 'f

... • ^

^' -\
^

/ ^.^
:^^f:/.,—& '••^.

lr.^. /y\^ ;(''^?l;']'vi. ; ^'fw";ir"""^ •-"".^..

^ " :"^
. I* (:;'!! rtlf I.null:' r-fl^ /^

^ :^ "

••*'?.

^. ^l

Y
©

.<' ^..:.
Knllir.l ''J; '<<• '

'* •

f.l.r.'.fl-'nr',!

*
I'-.nri.iH^i

M'WUlo^rRoad isdn ideal
location and just*..

^ll 3 mUcy from the juction of
- I-W^ndUou^Z

A, Lcsg than I mile to Routes

?i2S,Wmwt2A
(appr^tWtats tlsstancos)

For more mfornwlion regarding this project ple^e contact:

Exclusive Listing Agent:

THE STUBBLEBINE COMPANY
CORFAC INTERNATIONAL

Alan Ringucttv 978-265-8112

?ti^^€®^iNsfj€^^
:tA*3S^x:iia^£;.?3S»;i'iiGakZ^.rl£FS.^S»«iA:

&fl®^telbioKere^P^ar/ton?[itastiouid:^ di\
t^6niit?rurtant1iu)Sllgg^?iStW>^3ni soXs^ralnags brofteCsuGh inattsrg.

&£* L'Jfei* felfefe3t;"f

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 7 of 31



E RT1 ES,1 NC

2.77 Acres For Sale

www.99FitchburgRd.com

Scfuannacook
Htvcr

James Brook

.^^

\;

^

->/
'-s^ [3/ooV.

®»

n.,' r

^

1^'.\

Ifr-
99 FITCH BURG ROAD

AYER, MA
SUMMARY

99 Fitchburg Road is a prime piece of industrial land divided into three frontage lots for sale together or

individually. The land is level and located in a developed industrial area just off the main road on the West side

of Ayer/ Massachusetts. The land shows no visible defects and comes with a utility easement that is unimproved

at this time. Electricity and town water is available. The lots are ideal for a variety of industrial and commercial

applications.

sale and/or lease and/or removal from tha market.

7i
P̂ERTIES.INC

TO LEARN MORE CONTACT; O'BRIEN COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES, INC.
978-369-5500 Jeve?mP?^mWl^om I Joseph@obriencommerq^q^



COMMERCIAL

PROPERTIES,INC

SPECIFICATIONS
Land: Lot 1: .92 Acres

Lot 2: .92 Acres

Lot 3: .93 Acres

Zoning: Light Industrial

Type: Level Land

Frontage: 533' on Groton-Shirley Rd

Improvements: Rough Graded

Off Sites: Electric & Water on Street

2014 Taxes: Lot 1: $3,451.68

Lot 2: $3,445.92

Lot 3: $3,463.20

www.99FitchburgRd.com

SITE PLANS

<^
dcV

^ e(n

^^^
^^9^5isW9^W^

st

;^/^...;

•^ "^^'

^/^s.,
13.1^Acres ~"^...

(tf.p^AW:,fae*!S!»af ''•'•l.aflf ^. ^r"

,^^^. . ^wl^:::f^^

r^sW^)^i
B^, (^

.M^l

^ \^"'w

^•SfSSrH.s.TSiW^

^,''"~~'

"^ Pffl i ^er. Va,

Hobert L. (

Every effort has been made to furnish the most accurate informallon avallablg on this property and should ba deemed as such, however, all statements and conditions contained herein ara subject to
errors, omissions, prior sala and/or [ease and/or removal from the market.

COMMEnclAL

PHOPEnTIES,IHC

TO LEARN MORE CONTACT: O'BRIEN COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES, INC.
978-369-5500 ^evcwwmbmgfflmienKalirfiom | joseph@obriencommerci^^$?f3i



Exhibit A: Map Showing Distance between 31 Willow Road, Ayer, MA 01432 and 60 Willow Rd, Ayer, MA 01432 (1,505.18 ft)

31 Willow Rd Ayer, MA 01432

31 Wi!i&wRd..-..T . 'r- :••'-';

S^setVie-.'; Search nearby

KSW Tire Company

:31..,Wilk>w,Rd

y

"'"'. -.~. ~ The Peter Pan Center, 60 Willow Rd

Ayer.MA 01432 ^

ToTal distance-1,503.18 ft (45S.73 m.l

:,y--

-JL1TTLETON
5GK?31fl ?.^P

'////

^? e^)''J
ig0''~ ;;•'•

*>v

^ •ChioSrots'Ru^ : :-• ~^ca'" "^^ ,©• -
^ Linlelon'rMotorCoua-::"' •

^ ^_ ^ . ^ ^..-..-.,^.^-. ...,^ ^ . ^
^ Linlelon'rMotorCoua-::"' •

t - -• -^ ^ .j

^1—__^N1¥I'^^^<

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 10 of 31



Exhibit B: 500 Foot Radius Map of 31 Willow Road, Ayer, MA 01432

M9p<^C2015G»ogte1rr^CTy.NOT5.Di3it;dGlo6e,'hfessT^Comrnbm^ [tcnnstfUMjfltpntamapBmr

Exhibit B Map Key
1. Residential

2. K&W Tire Company

3. 31 Willow Road
4. Creative Materials Inc

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 11 of 31



Exhibit C: Map Showing Distance between 99 Fitchburg Rd, Ayer, MA 01432 and 20 Joy Lane, Groton, MA 01450 (1.14 miles)

KTR European Mo'.orsports f97SjTT2-7300

AUTO Repair Shcp • Be the firsi :u revien

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 12 of 31



Exhibit D: 5 00 Foot Radius Map of 99 Fitchburg Rd, Ayer, MA 01432

ja^
Close Full Screen • Satellite

Motors parts s

"fc-

'^ \
' '^

:M^dateeB015.(a^felmag^'.E^5,Djgita^Qb&htessG)^CQmmonw^tbdfM3ss3cHus8ttsEOB^vaMFa^ ] 5&m I T-ennsofUse I Repwtaiiapeaor -

Exhibit D May Key
1. 99 Fitchburg Rd
2. David E. Ross Associates, Inc

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 13 of 31



SEVEN POINT OF MASSACHUSETTS, INC.

SECURITY AND OPERATIONAL PLAN

The following security and operational plan meets and exceeds the requirements set forth in 105

CMR 725.110 - Security Requirements for Registered Marijuana Dispensaries ("RMD"),

Section 725.110 (A) - Requirement: A RMD shall implement sufficient security measures to

deter and prevent unauthorized entrance into areas containing marijuana and theft of marijuana at

the RMD. Security measures to protect the premises, registered qualifying patients, personal

caregivers, and dispensary agents of the RMD must include but are not limited to the following.

Response; Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. (Seven Point ) will contract with a

qualified security contractor to develop a full Security Plan (the "Plan") that provides

details on how Seven Point will ensure that its medicine and assets are secured against

external threats. For security reasons, the comprehensive Security Plan is not publicly

available. Key elements of this Plan are summarized below.

Section 725.110(A)(1) - Requirement: Allow only registered qualifying patients, personal

caregivers, dispensary agents, persons authorized by 105 CMR 725.105(P), and, subject to the

requirements of 105 CMR 725.110(C)(4), outside vendors, contractors, and visitors, access to the

RMD.

Response: Seven Point will limit access to its RMD to registered qualified patients,

personal caregivers, dispensary agents, persons authorized by the Department of Public

Health ("DPH"), and select outside vendors, contractors and visitors. All Seven Point

agents will be required to visibly wear a Seven Point identification badge at all times

while on-slte and when making deliveries. All outside vendors, contractors, patients,

careglvers, and visitors must obtain a visitor identification badge prior to entering a

limited access area, and shall be escorted at all times by a dispensary agent authorized to

enter the limited access area. The visitor identification badge must be visibly displayed at

all times while the visitor is in any limited access area. All visitors must be logged in and

out, and that log shall be available for inspection by the DPH at all times. All visitor

identification badges shall be returned to the RMD upon exit.

Section 725.110(A)(2) - Requirement: Prevent individuals from remaining on the premises of

the RMD if they are not engaging in activity expressly or by necessary implication permitted by

the Act and 105 CMR 725.000.

Response: Seven Point will employ security personnel who will routinely patrol the

dispensary perimeters and grounds to prevent loitering, nuisance activity or crime.

Security personnel will be trained prior to deployment in industry standards and crime

prevention. Security personnel will ensure that only eligible patients who comply with

the RMD's Code of Conduct and other dispensary policies are served and will patrol the

area to ensure non-dlversion and prevent use of medicine in public areas.

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 14 of 31



Section 725.110(A)(3) - Requirement: Dispose of marijuana in accordance with 105 CMR

725.105(J), in excess of the quantity required for normal, efficient operation as established in

105CMR725.105(G)(1).

Response: Solid waste generated at Seven Point will be disposed of in the following

ways:

• Through incineration in a commercial or municipal waste combustor in

Massachusetts holding a valid permit issued by the Department of

Environmental Protection ("DEP ) witnessed and documented by no fewer

than two (2) dispensary agents.

• Disposal in a landfill holding a valid permit issued by the DEP or by the
appropriate state agency in the state in which the facility Is located witnessed and

documented by no fewer than two (2) dispensary agents.

• Grinding and incorporating the medical marijuana waste with solid wastes such

that the resulting mixture renders the medical marijuana waste unusable. Once

such medical marijuana waste has been rendered unusable, it will be either

disposed of in a solid waste management facility that holds a valid permit issued

by the DEP or by the appropriate state agency in the state in which the facility is

located or, if the material mixed with the medical marijuana waste is organic

material as defined in 310 CMR 16.02, the mixture will be composted at an

operation that is in compliance with the requirements of 310 CMR 16.00.

When marijuana or marijuana infused products ("MIP") are disposed of, Seven Point will

create and maintain a written record of the date, the type and quantity disposed of, the

manner of disposal, and the persons present during the disposal, with their signatures.

Disposal records will be kept for at least two (2) years.

Section 725.110(A)(4) - Requirement: Establish limited access areas accessible only to

specifically authorized personnel, which shall include only the minimum number of employees

essential for efficient operation.

Response: Seven Point will establish limited access areas accessible only to specifically

authorized personnel. Seven Point will post the following statement (at a minimum size

of 12" x 12" with lettering no smaller than 1" In height) at all areas of ingress or egress to

identify limlted-access areas: "Do Not Enter - Limited Access Area ~- Access Limited to

Authorized Personnel Only."

Seven Point will provide all dispensary agents with varying levels of access to limited

access areas depending on their position. For example, the Chief Executive Officer and

the Chief Operating Officer will have access to all areas of the dispensary, including all

limited access areas. Other agents will be limited to only those areas directly related to

their department and position within their department.

Section 725.110(A)(5) - Requirement: Store all finished marijuana in a secure, locked safe or

vault and in such a manner as to prevent diversion, theft, and loss.

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 15 of 31



Response: Seven Point will store all medical marijuana at its dispensary site in a secured

vault room that is climate-controlled and monitored 24-hours a day, for both security and

changes in environment (temperature and humidity). Seven Point will store cash and

other valuables in a secure safe located inside the vault room.

Access to the secure storage area will be restricted and monitored through the use of

electronic locks. Only select employees who have been authorized by management will

have access to the secured storage area. This will be monitored through staff credentials.

Section 725.110(A)(6)" Requirement: Keep all safes, vaults, and any other equipment or areas

used for the production, cultivation, harvesting, processing, or storage of marijuana and MEPs

securely locked and protected from entry, except for the actual time required to remove or

replace marijuana.

Response: Seven Point will keep all safes and vaults securely locked and protected from

entry via electronic locks, except for the actual time required to remove or replace

marijuana, as conducted by authorized personnel.

Section 725.110(A)(7) ~ Requirement: Keep ail locks and security equipment in good working

order.

Response: Seven Point will keep all locks and security equipment in good working order,

via regular inspections and testing, not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days from the

previous inspection and test.

Section 725.110(A)(8)-Requirement: Prohibit keys, if applicable, from being left in the locks,

or stored or placed in a location accessible to persons other than specifically authorized

personnel.

Response: Seven Point will use electric locks with associated card readers to manage exit

and entry into limited access areas. Seven Point will restrict the availability of access

cards only to authorized personnel, which will reduce the risk of access by unauthorized

personnel. All access cards must be returned to security personnel at the end of each shift

to ensure proper and safe storage.

Section 725.110(A)(9) - Requirement: Prohibit accessibility of security measures, such as

combination numbers, passwords, or electronic or biometrlc security systems, to persons other

than specifically authorized personnel.

Response: Seven Point will protect the confidentiality of Seven Point's security

measures, such as combination numbers, passwords, and electronic lock activators,

against threats from unauthorized personnel.

Section 725.110(A)(10) - Requirement: Ensure that the outside perimeter of the RMD is

sufficiently lit to facilitate surveillance.

Response: Seven Point will install sufficient lighting outside of the RMD for use each

day between sunset and sunrise that adequately illuminates the RMD and its surrounding

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 16 of 31



areas, including the parking and entry areas. Exterior lighting will be installed near video

surveillance devices to ensure proper illumination for the identification of people,

vehicles and license plates within forty (40') feet of the buildings. The outdoor lighting

will be hooded to deflect light away from adjacent properties. Sufficient exterior lighting

will serve as a deterrent against robbery and burglary.

Section 725.110(A)(11) - Requirement: Ensure that trees, bushes, and other foliage outside of

the RMD do not allow for a person or persons to conceal themselves from sight.

Response: Seven Point's external landscaping plans will minimize potential security

threats posed by trees, bushes, and other foliage, while still promoting an aesthetic for the

facilities that blends with the surrounding community. No trees, brush and/or any other

material will be placed against the building.

Section 725.110(A)(12) - Requirement: Develop emergency policies and procedures for

securing all product following any instance of diversion, theft, or loss of marijuana, and conduct

an assessment to determine whether additional safeguards are necessary.

Response: Seven Point will implement security policies and procedures providing

detailed instructions for securing all product following any instance of diversion, theft, or

loss of marijuana, and for conducting an assessment to determine whether additional

safeguards are necessary. These instructions mandate close coordination with local law

enforcement and the DPH.

Section 725.110(A)(13) - Requirement: Develop sufficient additional safeguards as required

by the Department for RMDs that present special security concerns.

Response: Seven Point is not aware, at this time, of any special security concerns

pertaining to its proposed RMD.

Section 725.110(A)(14) ~ Requirement: A RMD shall comply with all local requirements

regarding siting, provided however that if no local requirements exist, a RMD shall not be sited

within a radius of five hundred (500') feet of a school, daycare center, or any facility in which

children commonly congregate. The five hundred (500 ) foot distance under this section is

measured in a straight line from the nearest point of the facility in question to the nearest point of

the proposed RMD.

Response: Seven Point will comply with all local and state siting requirements.

LIMITED ACCESS AREAS

Section 725.110 (C)(l) - Requirement: All limited access areas must be identified by the

posting of a sign that shall be a minimum of 12 X 12 and which states: "Do Not Enter

Limited Access Area — Access Limited to Authorized Personnel Only" in lettering no smaller

than 1 inch in height.

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 17 of 31



Response: Seven Point will post the following statement (at a minimum size of 12" x 12"

with lettering no smaller than 1 inch in height) at all areas of ingress or egress to identify

limited-access areas: Do Not Enter - Limited Access Area — Access Limited to

Authorized Personnel Only."

Section 725.110 (C)(2) - Requirement: All limited access areas shall be clearly described by

the filing of a diagram of the registered premises, in the form and manner determined by the

DPH, reflecting walls, partitions, counters, and all areas of entry and exit. Said diagram shall also

show all propagation, vegetation, flowering, processing, production, storage, disposal, and retail

sales areas.

Response: Upon provisional Hcensure by the DPH, Seven Point shall provide Ayer a

diagram of the RMD, reflecting walls, partitions, counters, and all areas of entry and exit.

Said diagram shall also show all propagation, vegetation, flowering, processing,

production, storage, disposal, and retail sales areas.

Section 725.110 (C)(3) - Requirement: A dlspensary agent shall visibly display an
identification badge issued by the RMD at all times while at the RMD or transporting marijuana.

Response: All Seven Point agents will be required to visibly wear a Seven Point

identification badge at all times while on-site and when making deliveries.

Section 725.110 (C)(4) - Requirement: All outside vendors, contractors, and visitors must

obtain a visitor identification badge prior to entering a limited access area, and shall be escorted

at all times by a dlspensary agent authorized to enter the limited access area. The visitor

identification badge must be visibly displayed at all times while the visitor is in any limited

access area. All visitors must be logged in and out, and that log shall be available for inspection

by the Department at all times. All visitor identification badges shall be returned to the RMD

upon exit.

Response: Seven Point will limit access to all areas of the RMD to authorized dispensary

agents. All outside vendors, contractors, and visitors must obtain a visitor Identification

badge prior to entering a limited access area; the visitor Identification badge must be

visibly displayed at all times while the visitor is in any limited access area. All visitors

must be logged in and out, and that log shall be available for inspection by the DPH at all

times. All visitor identification badges shall be returned upon exit. For added security,

Seven Point will require that a security agent accompany any non-dispensary agent if a

non-dlspensary agent needs to enter an enclosed, locked area where marijuana is stored.

SECURITY AND ALARM SYSTEMS

Section 725.110(D)(1) - Requirement: A RMD shall have an adequate security system to

prevent and detect diversion, theft, or loss of marijuana or unauthorized intrusion, utilizing

commercial grade equipment, which shall, at a minimum include:

Section 725.110(D)(l)(a)- Requirement: A perimeter alarm on all entry points and perimeter

windows.

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 18 of 31



Response: Seven Point will feature an alarm system on all entry points and windows. An

additional motion alarm will be placed on the dispensary wall that is adjacent to attached

bay.

Section 72S.110(D)(l)(b) - Requirement: A failure notification system that provides an

audible, text, or visual notification of any failure in the surveillance system. The failure

notification system shall provide an alert to designated employees of the RMD within five

minutes after the failure, either by telephone, email, or text message.

Response: The electronic monitoring system for Seven Point will include a failure

notification system that provides both an audio and visual notification should a failure in

the electronic monitoring system occur. Additionally, senior management will receive

email/text notification of the system failure within five (5) minutes after the failure.

Section 725.110(D)(l)(c)"" Requirement: A duress alarm, panic alarm, or holdup alarm

connected to local public safety or law enforcement authorities.

Response: Seven Point will install a "duress alarm (silent alarm to signal alarm user

being forced to turn off system), a "holdup alarm" (robbery in progress), and a "panic

alarm" (life threatening or emergency situation). Alarms will be coordinated with local

law enforcement.

Section 725.110(D)(l)(d) - Requirement: Video cameras In all areas that may contain

marijuana, at all points of entry and exit, and in any parking lot, which shall be appropriate for

the normal lighting conditions of the area under surveillance. The cameras shall be directed at all

safes, vaults, sales areas, and areas where marijuana is stored, handled, or dispensed. Cameras

shall be angled so as to allow for the capture of clear and certain identification of any person

entering or exiting the RMD or area.

Response: The building will be well illuminated and video cameras will be at all entry

and exit points as well as the parking lot, so as to allow for the capture of clear and

certain identification of any person entering or exiting the RMD or area. Also, video

cameras will be positioned in all areas that contain marijuana including the storage safe.

Section 725.110(D)(l)(e) - Requirement: Twenty-four (24) hour recordings from all video

cameras that are available for immediate viewing by the DPH upon request and that are retained

for at least ninety (90) calendar days. Recordings shall not be destroyed or altered, and shall be

retained as long as necessary if the RMD is aware of a pending criminal, civil, or administrative

investigation, or legal proceeding for which the recording may contain relevant information.

Response: Seven Point's video recording will be operational twenty-four (24) hours a

day/seven (7) days a week. Videos will be retained for a minimum of ninety (90) days or

unless requested longer by appropriate authority.

Section 725.110(D)(l)(f) - Requirement: The ability to immediately produce a clear, color, still

photo (live or recorded).

Seven Point of Massachusetis, Inc. Page 19 of 31



Response: Seven Point will maintain a high-quality printer in the security viewing area

that is capable of immediately producing a clear still photo from any video camera image.

Section 725.110(D)(l)(g) - Requirement: A date and time stamp embedded on all recordings.

The date and time shall be synchronized and set correctly and shall not significantly obscure the

picture.

Response: Seven Point will embed a date and time stamp on all recordings. The date and

time will be synchronized and set correctly and will not significantly obscure the picture.

Section 72S.110(D)(l)(h) - Requirement: The ability to remain operational during a power
outage.

Response: Seven Point's video cameras will be supported by a backup generator,

ensuring their ability to remain operational during a power outage.

Section 725.110(D)(l)(i) - Requirement: A video recording that allows for the exporting of still

images in an industry standard image format, including .jpg, .bmp, and .gif. Exported video shall

have the ability to be archived in a proprietary format that ensures authentication of the video

and guarantees that no alteration of the recorded image has taken place. Exported video shall also

have the ability to be saved in an industry standard file format that can be played on a standard

computer operating system. All recordings shall be erased or destroyed prior to disposal.

Response: Seven Point's surveillance system will allow for the exporting of still images

in an industry standard image format, including jpg, .bmp, and .gif. Exported video will

have the ability to be archived in a proprietary format that ensures authentication of the

video and guarantees that no alteration of the recorded image has taken place. Exported

video will also have the ability to be saved in an industry standard file format that can be

played on a standard computer operating system. All recordings will be erased or

destroyed prior to disposal.

Section 725.110(D)(2) -" Requirement: All security system equipment and recordings shall be

maintained in a secure location so as to prevent theft, loss, destruction, and alterations.

Response: Seven Point will maintain all security system equipment and recordings in a

secure location so as to prevent theft, loss, destruction, and aiterations. This will be a

limited access area featuring electronic locks that allow restricted access to select

authorized dispensary agents, such as the Head of Security and Chief Executive Officer,

as well as law enforcement authorities and the DPH.

Section 725.110(D)(3) - Requirement: In addition to the requirements listed In 105 CMR

725.110(D)(l) and (2), the RND shall have a back-up alarm system, with all capabilities of the
primary system, provided by a company supplying commercial grade equipment, which shall not

be the same company supplying the primary security system.

Response: Seven Point will have a back-up alarm system, with all capabilities of the

primary system, which shall not be installed/monitored by the same company as the

primary security system.

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 20 of 31



Section 725.110(D)(4)" Requirement: Access to surveillance areas shall be limited to persons

that are essential to surveillance operations, law enforcement authorities acting within their

lawful jurisdiction, security system service personnel, and the Department. A current list of

authorized employees and service personnel that have access to the surveillance room must be

available to the Department upon request. Ifon-site, surveillance rooms shall remain locked and

shall not be used for any other function.

Response: Seven Point's video surveillance system will have the capability to record,

archive and play back video feed for a minimum of thirty (30) days. The system will be

intern et-based, providing greater flexibility, with the use ofhlgh-resolution megapixel

cameras, and multiple streams for efficient operations and quick investigations. The

electronic recording system hub and all recordings will be stored in a locked, tamper-

proof compartment within the security viewing area. This will be a limited access area

with entry restricted only to select authorized dlspensary agents, such as the Head of

Security and Chief Executive Officer, as well as law enforcement authorities and the

DPH. A current list of authorized employees and service personnel that have access to the

surveillance room will be available to the DPH upon request.

Electronic locks will be used to secure the security viewing area, access will only be

granted authorized dispensary agents.

Section 725.110(D)(5) - Requirement: All security equipment shall be in good working order

and shall be inspected and tested at regular intervals, not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days from

the previous inspection and test.

Response: Seven Point will ensure all security equipment is in good working order via

regular inspections and testing, not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days from the previous

inspection and test.

REGISTERED MARIJUANA DISPENSARY TRANSPORTATION OF MARIJUANA
AND MIPS

Section 725.110(E)(1) - Requirement: Only a dispensary agent may transport marijuana or

MIPs on behalf of a RMD, whether between RMDs, RMD sites, or to registered qualifying

patients or personal caregivers.

Response: Seven Point will use only highly trained dispensary agent couriers to transport

marijuana or MIPs between RMDs, RMD sites, or to registered qualifying patients or

personal caregivers.

Section 725.110(E)(2) - Requirement: A RMD shall:
a) Weigh, inventory, and account for on video all marijuana to be transported prior to its leaving

the origmation location;

b) Re-weigh, re-mventory, and account for on video all marijuana transported, within eight hours

after arrival at the destination RMD except in the case of home delivery pursuant to 105 CMR

725.HO(E)(U);

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 21 of 31



c) Document and report any unusual discrepancy in weight or inventory to the Department and

local law enforcement within twenty-four (24) hours;

d) Complete a shipping manifest in a form and manner determined by the Department, for

retention by the origination location, and carry a copy of said manifest with the products being

transported; and

e) Securely transmit a copy of the manifest to the receiving R-MD prior to transport except In the

case of home delivery pursuant to 105 CMR 725.110(E)(11).

Response: Orders received from the RMD to the cultivation site, and from qualifying

patients, or personal caregivers for home delivery will be routed to a Seven Point agent

designated to processing orders for delivery. The agent will then package the order in a

designated room within the RMD. When the order Is complete, the agent will inform the

courier of a delivery (which may or may not be the same calendar day).

A collaborative review by an agent designated to processing orders for delivery, and the

courier is needed to review and crosscheck all products against the packaging invoice

prior to packing the transportation box.

Each packaging invoice will contain the following information, which will be verified by

both parties on video and signed off on by each party on the invoice copy:

• Quantity of product by variety and form (form relating to raw flower buds,

concentrates or a particular MIP).

• Price per unit of each product.

• Date of delivery and estimated time of delivery.

• Product documentation on each variety shipped with laboratory testing results.

• The name (which must be initialed) by the designated agent who prepared and

packaged the items being delivered.

• The name of the dispensary, phone number, designated agent name and agent s

private cell phone number (In case of emergency) are listed on the invoice.

Once the verification is complete, the order will be placed in the transport box. The

designated agent will then lock the transport box for delivery. A copy of the packaging

invoice will accompany the transport.

Section 725.110(E)(3) - Requirement: A RMD shall retain all shipping manifests for no less

than one (1) year and make them available to the DPH upon request.

Response: Seven Point will retain all packaging invoices (i.e., shipping manifests) for no

less than one (1) year and will make them available to the DPH upon request.

Section 725.110(E)(4) - Requirement: A RMD shall ensure that marijuana is:

a) Transported in a secure, locked storage compartment that is part of the vehicle transporting the

marijuana;

b) Not visible from outside the vehicle; and

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 22 of 31



c) Transported in a vehicle that bears no markings that indicate that the vehicle is being used to

transport marijuana nor indicates the name of the RMD.

Response: It is Seven Point's policy to be as inconspicuous as possible when delivering

product and to avoid drawing attention to any vehicle for the safety of the RMD, agents

and registered patients or caregivers. RMD vehicles will bear no markings that indicate

that the vehicle is being used to transport marijuana nor Indicates the name of the R-MD.

Additionally, vehicles with excessive bumper stickers, extra-large tires, tinted windows,

unusual paint color, pinstriping, or raised chassis are not permitted to be used for

transport, as they will only draw unwanted attention. Marijuana will be secured and

transported so as not to be visible from outside the vehicle.

Seven Point will use locked transport boxes to deliver products. The Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Operating Officer will each have a set of keys, and a separate set will

be given to the agent responsible for inventory and to courier(s), on an as-needed basis,

for the purpose of home delivery. The couriers will deliver the product to the RMD,

registered qualifying patient, or personal caregiver, who will unlock it in view of the

agent receiving the deliver for the RMD, the registered qualifying patient, or personal

caregiver and remove all items. This reduces liability on Seven Point's part and

circumvents agent theft of products.

Seven Point will be using specially designed transport boxes with two separate embedded

locks designed by security specialists. The transport boxes are designed to be the

strongest and most durable in the industry. They are currently in use in industrial

construction companies, and art and Jewelry dealers for shipping precious cargo that

requires ultimate security.

The transport box is constructed with heavily reinforced 16-gauge steel construction and

a flat exterior, eliminating exposed handles. Dual locks are in recessed areas, making it

impossible to attempt to cut locks off. Heavy-duty locking arms support the lid, and all
hinges are welded on the inside of the box for extra security.

Locks are reinforced, and the laminated steel body adds strength and durability. Patented

dual-locking levers offer added protection from prying and hammering, while the 7/16"

hardened alloy shackle makes it tough to cut or saw off the box. Each lock is

independent of the other and requires a separate key to open, thus preventing a lost key

from opening the box.

The transport box will be stored within a secure, locked storage compartment that is part

of the vehicle transporting the product.

During all transport, a high-powered GPS tracking device is placed inside the box and

can be monitored In real-time on both the web and any smart phone that has internet and

browser capability. In the unlikely event of a loss. Seven Point can work in conjunction

with law enforcement to trace the missing box. Due to the unique heavy-duty

10

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 23 of 31



construction and locks, it would take several hours for any unauthorized person to get

into the box, which is enough lead time to trace down the culprit using GPS.

Section 725.110(E)(5) - Requirement: Any vehicle transporting marijuana shall travel directly

to the receiving RMD and shall not make any stops except in the case of home delivery pursuant

to 105 CMR725.110(E)(11). In case of an emergency stop, a detailed log must be maintained

describing the reason for the event, the duration, the location, and any activities of personnel

exiting the vehicle.

Response: Seven Point couriers will travel directly to and from RMDs and patient homes

with no stops permitted, except in the case of an emergency. In case of an emergency

stop (such as those described above, as well as others), a detailed log will be maintained

describing the reason for the event, the duration, the location, and any activities of

personnel exiting the vehicle. Vehicles must have more than a half-tank of gas prior to

departing the RMD. If the fuel level Is less than half of a tank, the couriers must stop and

refuel prior to loading.

Section 725.110(E)(6) - Requirement: A RMD shall ensure that all delivery times and routes

are randomized.

Response: Seven Point policies regarding delivery schedules are as follows;

• Times for delivery are not set up on a weekly timed schedule. For security

reasons, the days of the week and times are randomized to thwart any possibility

of robbery.

• Delivery times are appointed according to courier schedules, and RMD and

patient needs.

• Deliveries of product are not announced on any dispensary calendar, nor are they

put into any online calendar for view by the general public.

• Delivery routes are randomlzed for security purposes. Prior to making the first

delivery, it is the responsibility of the courier to do a "test-run" from the RMD on

various streets to find potential routes that are efficient in traffic and well-

traveled.

Section 725.110(E)(7) - Requirement: A RMD shall staff all transport vehicles with a

minimum of two (2) dispensary agents. At least one (1) dispensary agent shall remain with the

vehicle at all times that the vehicle contains marijuana.

Response: Seven Point will staff the transportation service with a minimum of two (2)

dispensary agents (Couriers). At least one (1) dispensary agent will remain with the

vehicle at all times that the vehicle contains marijuana.

Section 72S.110(E)(8) — Requirement: Each dispensary agent shall have access to a secure

form of communication with personnel at the sending site at all times that the vehicle contains

marijuana.

II

Seven Point of Massachusetts, inc. Page 24 of 31



Response: Couriers will be required to carry smart phones such as iPhones, Androids,

Blackberrys or other devices that have GPS technology and serve as a secure form of

communication with the personnel at the sending site at all times that the vehicle contains

marijuana. Should a dispensary agent not own a phone with these features, Seven Point

will provide a temporary-use phone to the courier.

Section 725.110(E)(9) - Requirement: Each dispensary agent shall carry his or her DPH-lssued

registration card at all times when transporting marijuana and shall produce it to the
Department's authorized representative or law enforcement official upon request.

Response: Each of Seven Point's couriers will carry his or her DPH-issued agent ID

registration card at all times when transporting marijuana and will produce it to the

DPH's authorized representative or law enforcement official upon request.

Section 725.110(E)(10) - Requirement; A RMD shall report to the DPH and local law
enforcement any vehicle accidents, diversions, losses, or other reportable incidents pursuant to

105 CMR 725.110(F), that occur during transport, within 24 hours.

Response: Seven Point will report to the DPH and local law enforcement any vehicie

accidents, diversions, losses, or other reportable incidents pursuant to 1 05 CMR

725.110(F), that occur during transport, within twenty-four (24) hours. Seven Point's

security policies and procedures will contain detailed instructions for how couriers should

respond if stopped by law enforcement, are involved in an accident, and/or experience

diversion.

Section 725.110(E)(11)—Requirement; Home delivery of marijuana to a registered qualifying

patient or a personal caregiver shall be conducted in accordance with 105 CMR 725.105(F) and

105CMR725.UO(E).

Response; Arrival at the delivery destination will be carried out as follows:

• When the couriers are approximately five (5) minutes away from the delivery

destination, courier two will telephone the registered qualifying patient or

personal caregiver to inform them of the impending arrival and to alert any

dispensary security team members of the arrival.

• At the moment of arrival, courier two will telephone the registered qualifying

patient or personal caregiver to inform them of arrival.

• For home deliveries, the registered qualifying patient or personal caregiver will

verify safety and direct courier two to exit the delivery vehicle.

• At this time, courier two will display the Seven Point ID badge in plain view for

verification to the registered qualifying patient or personal caregiver.

• Likewise, courier two will verify patient or caregiver credentials, Including

personal identification prior to removing the transport box from the vehicle.

• If there are any unfamiliar faces present, or if credentials do not match, the Seven

Point couriers will exit the premises and return to the delivery vehicle.

12

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 25 of 31



• After verification, courier two will remove the transport box from the vehicle and

enter the delivery location.

» Courier two will call a designated agent of Seven Point (e.g. security agent) and

verify his/her safe arrival.

• Once safely inside, the courier will unlock the transport box.

• In the case of home delivery, courier two will provide the registered qualifying

patient or personal caregiver with a copy of the packaging invoice. The patient or

caregiver will verify the accuracy of the delivery as described on the packaging

invoice, will initial each line item on the Invoice, then place his/her full signature

at the bottom of the invoice to indicate receipt ofthe merchandise as documented

on the packaging invoice.

• All documentation will be placed back in the locked transport box to prevent

do cument-tam pc ri ng.

• Courier two will take the transport box back to the transport vehicle and return to

Seven Point.

Leaving the patient location will include the following process:

• Courier two will call Seven Point to inform staff of a completed delivery and that

the Courier is on route back to the RMD.

• Courier two will verify that the phone and GPS Tracking program are active for

the return trip to Seven Point.

• In the case of a home delivery, courier one will be notified by courier two to

perform a security check of the immediate vicinity prior to courier two leaving the

location with the empty transport box.

• Once courier one gives the all-clear signal to courier two, he/she will exit the

location and place the transport box into the delivery vehicle.

• Once courier two is safely in the locked vehicle, he/she will telephone Seven

Point to inform them transport is ready to depart the location for the RMD.

• The couriers will return to Seven Point using an approved randomized route

without any stops.

• The couriers must telephone Seven Point for any changes in the preplanned route

back to the RMD.

• When the couriers are approximately five minutes from the RMD, Courier Two

will telephone Seven Point so that the designated agents can prepare for the

delivery vehicle to arrive at the RMD.

Section 725.110(E)(12)— Requirement: Each vehicle used for transport of marijuana shall have

a global positioning system monitoring device that is monitored by the RMD during transport.

Response: Couriers will be required to carry smartphones such as iPhones, Androids,

Blackben'ys or other devices that have GPS technology and serve as a secure form of

communication with the personnel at the sending site at all times that the vehicle contains

13

Seven Point of Massachusetts, Inc. Page 26 of 31



marijuana. Should a dispensary agent not own a phone with these features. Seven Point

will provide a temporary-use phone to the couriers.

The purpose of smart phones is to use the GPS Tracker application from an application

such as AppBrain.com. The application will allow staff at the RMD to track routes used

by the delivery couriers for expected arrival times at drop-off locations and in the case of

an emergency. This is a safety measure for Seven Point's staff and also a deterrent so that

couriers do not take any unpermitted side trips.

INCIDENT REPORTING

Section 725.110(F)(1) - Requirement: A RMD shall immediately notify appropriate law
enforcement authorities and the DPH within twenty-four (24) hours after discovering the

following:

a) Discrepancies identified during inventory, diversion, theft, loss, and any criminal action

involving the RMD or a dispensary agent;

b) Any suspicious act involving the sale of marijuana by any person;

c) Unauthorized destruction of marijuana;

d) Any loss or unauthorized alteration of records related to marijuana, registered qualifying

patients, personal caregivers, or dispensary agents;

e) An alarm activation or other event that requires response by public safety personnel;

f) The failure of any security alarm system due to a loss of electrical power or mechanical

malfunction that is expected to last longer than eight (8) hours; and

g) Any other breach of security.

Response: Seven Point will immediately notify appropriate law enforcement authorizes

and the DPH within twenty-four (24) hours after discovering incidents involving material

inventory discrepancies, compromises to the RMD s security equipment, threats and acts

of violence and security-related incidents such as theft, loss, vandalism, malicious or

unauthorized use of company equipment or facilities, and allegations of employee

misconduct.

Section 72S.110(F)(2) - Requirement: A RMD shall, within ten (1 0) calendar days, provide

written notice to the DPH of any incident described in 105 CMR 725.110(F)(1), by submitting an
incident report in the form and manner determined by the DPH, which details the circumstances

of the event, any corrective actions taken, and confirmation that the appropriate law enforcement

authorities were notified.

Response: Within ten (10) calendar days of an incident, as noted above. Seven Point will

submit an incident report detailing the circumstances of the event, any corrective actions

taken, and confirmation that the appropriate law enforcement authorities were notified.

Section 725.110(F)(3) - Requirement: All documentation related to an incident that is

reportable pursuant to 105 CMR725.110(F)(1) shall be maintained by aRMD for no less than
one year and made available to the Department and to law enforcement authorities acting within

their lawful jurisdiction upon request.

14

Seven Point of Massachusetts, inc. Page 27 of 31



Response: Seven Point will maintain all documentation related to a reported incident for

no less than one (1) year and will make this information available to the DPH and law

enforcement authorities upon request.

SECURITY SYSTEM AUDIT

Section 725.110(G) - Requirement: A RMD must, on an annual basis, obtain at its own

expense a security system audit by a vendor approved by the DPH. A report of such audit must

be submitted, in a form and manner determined by the DPH, no later than thirty (30) calendar

days after the audit is conducted. If the audit identifies concerns related to the RMD's security

system, the RMD must also submit aplan to mitigate those concerns within ten (10) business

days of submitting the audit.

Response: Seven Point will undertake an annual security system audit using a DPH-

approved vendor. The findings of this audit will be submitted to the Department no later

than thirty (30) days after the audit is conducted. Seven Point will also submit all

necessary plans detailing how any findings will be mitigated within ten (10) business

days of submitting the audit.

15

Seven Point of Massachusetts, !nc. Page 28 of 31



LS )o BZ aGEel s))3snL)3essem] }a luioj uaAag

las NDisaa
ST9rao

:iLva

£8£LZl

0
>
7^

"a

>̂
7^

r~

CT>
0
(JO

0
N3

:iaawnN aof

^
0
I—
>
7^,

m
en

70
mm•H

Cft
m
m
~z.

"0

0
z

>
Crtm'>
-<-1 V

^s
m -i

0co

0

-n

^;
££'
o.b !
en os I
5: A.
A. ^
u\ ?'

=il>

' 5 =

.0-,1.=^:3*1VOS

NVId A130

AiddnsyaMOd — IS/dl

a3aac33y030lA"nu.l3ia — |UMl|

vaauiw I'iooaaini — OQ

di'ioi-wama.ogL — t?|ai"u|

fit11S-Wa3L1'/3a3X1J —^^B

dOSDL- W3L'IV003XU — I>|anwi|

aN393~l A133



ACCESS LEGEND
[CR I — CARD PEACE";

|BRB] — [;';=FE..=ftFE 'i.irron

[SH\ — F-L^CrF;-,^ UOOP. HCFDl'.AFL

(ES) — ELSCTFIC iTFI-E

I Sl I — ^.T^-rjc^FO IN" !=P;^M

ACCESS PLAN
SCALE: TR"=I'-O"

=i E.

s <c "1
t: 11

-" t"?
~ia cd w

1§§
x1^

u

co
0 5
t- LU

S lil co
a F- >-
<JycoH

2
0
D-

L̂U

^u
en

[—
UJ
UJ

Î-
cr>

LU

<̂
—I

0̂-

JOB NUMBER:

CM
0m0\Q

—1

t̂t:
<
D_

<̂
0

171383
DATE:

08Ji6.15
DESIGN SET

Seven Point of Massachusetts. Inc. Page 3D of 31



BURGLAR ALARM LEGEND
(u) — MOTION DETECTORCE1LINGW10UOT

Si — INDOOR EIREN

HH — TOUCH PWf KEY PAD

|P8| — PANIC BUTTON

[CB\ — GLASS BRBW

|V/C| — V16EANDSAF6CONTACT

@ — DOOR CDHTACT

IBACP] — EURGLARAIARMCONTROLF'AKEL

iS^-' 1)®^', PORT ^~^,^^

SECURITY PLAN
SCALE: •re"=r-o"

uli

S E

<13=

0 \£i
0 ^^ m npio in

fc ^ •^
JS •3"^
~n id co

•3 o £
^33

>c
tirun

co
0 S
t- IU

^ HI tO
a: t- >
<^wH

rs
Qmi- °

LLJ ^>
U-l

0^ _i
E- i-

tft

0
D-

^sl
^ 2 ^S 2 ^t/5 i=

JOB NUMBER:

171383
DATE:

06^6.15
DESIGN srr

Seven Point of Massachusetts. Inc. Page 31 of 31



SECTION C: LETTER OF SUPPORT OR NON-OPPOSITION

Attach a letter of support or non-opposition, using one of the templates below (Option A or B), signed by the local municipality in which the applicant intends to
locate a dispensary. The applicant may choose to use either template, in consultation with the host community. If the applicant is proposing a dispensary location

and a separate culttvation/processmg location, the applicant must submit a letter of support or non-opposition from both municipalities. This letter may be signed

by (a) the Chief Executive Officer/Chief Administrative Officer, as appropriate, for the desired municipality; or (b) the City Council, Board ofAlderman, or Board
of "Selectmen for the desired municipality. The letter of support or non-opposition must contain the language as provided below. The letter must be printed on

the municipality's official letterhead.

Template Option A: Use this language if signatory is a Chief Executive Officer/Chief Administrative Officer
/, [Name of person], do hereby provide [support/no7i-opposition\ to [name of non-profit organization} to operate a Registered Marijuana Dispensary ("RMD") in [name of city or

town].

I have verified •with the appropna^ocal officials that the proposed RMD facility is located in a. zoning district that allo'ws such use by right or pursuant to local permitting.

Name and TitlejsfI^^TI

Signature

Date

Template Option B: Use this lansyage if signatory is acting on behalf pf a City Council, Board of AIderman, or Board of Selecttnan
The [name of counciVboard\, does hereby provide [support/non-opposition} to [name of non-profit organization^ to operate a Registered Marijuana Dispensary in [name of city or
town]. I have been authorized to provide this letter on behalf ofthe [name ofcovncil/board\ by a vote taken at a duly noticed meeting held on [date].

The [name of councii/board\ has verified 'with the appropriate local officials that the proposed RMD facility is located in a zoning district that allows such use by right or pursuant
to local permitting.

Name and Title ofln^^©j|oi'^rson authorized to act on behalf of council or board) (add more fines for names if needed)

Signature (a^S^^^^J^r signatures if needed)

Date

Information on this page has been reviewed by the applicant, and where provided by the applicant,

is accurate and complete, as indicated by the initials of the authorized signatory here:

Siting Profile - Page 6



Office of the Ayer Board of Selectmen

Office of the Ayet Town Administrator

Town of Ayer | Ayer Town Hall | 1 Main Street | Ayer, MA 01432 | 978-772-8220 | Fax 978-772-3017 | www.ayer.ma.us

MEMORANDUM

DATE: September 11, 2015

TO: Ayer Board of Selectmen

FROM: Robert A. Pontbmncl
Town AdininistL-ator

SUBJECT: Town Administrator's Report for the September 15, 2015 Board of Selectmen
Meeting

Dear Honoi:able Selectmen,

I offer the following Town Admiiiistrator's Report fot the September 15, 2015 Board of Sclccttnen

Meeting. If you have nny questions prior to the meeting, please do not hesitate to contact me

directly. Thank you.

Admimsttative Update;

I will offer a brief oral Administrative Update at the meetmg on September 15, 2015 highlighting

viirious inidadves, projects, and issues undcrtoken by the Administradon smce the September 1,

2015 meeting. With the Special FaU Town Meeting just ove-c a month away, significant time is being

devoted to the preparation of the Warrant for the October 26, 2015 Special Fiill Town Meetmg
Warmnt. Additiormlly, the Town Accountant is in the process of closing the books in preparation of

having die Town's free cash certified by the DOR prior to the Special FaU Town Meeting.

The following is a status report of various items;

1. Town Hall Carpet Replacement: Project: All of the offices of the Town HaU will be complete with

new carpeting by September 25tb. The project though n significant logistical undertaking has gone

very smoothly and has been a success. A special thanks to Mr. Dan Sherm?in, Fadlides Director for

all of his efforts.

2. Special Fall Town Meeting; Scheduled for Mondny, October 26, 2015 at 7pm in the Great HaU of

the Town Hall. All Warrant Ardcles (including Citizens Peddons) are due no later than Friday,

September 25, 2015 at 12pm. Drafting and preparation of the Warrant is undet'way,



3. Comprehensive Plan Committee: The fk'st meeting of the Comprehensive Plan Committee will be

on Tuesday, September 29, 2015 at 6pm in the Ayer 'I own Hall. Extensive prcp^fation by the
Administt'ation for this first naccting and to ensure that this is ^ successful endeavof has taken place

over the summer months.

4. FY 2017 Budget Process: The FY 2017 Budget Process will soon be underway with the Capital

Planning Committee commencing \vith its work in the middle of October; die Water and Sewer

Rate Committee to meet on September 28, 2015 at 3pm; Tax Classification Public Heftring fot

November, and the Finance Committee is looking at changing this year's Budget Process in terms

of the number and type ofDepairtmental Budget Meetings (more information to be forthcoming

after their September 23, 2015 meeting).

Credit Card Policy:

At the request of various Departments and In the interests of improving the way in which the Town docs

business, the 1 own has developed a Credit Card Policy over the List couple of months for review nnd

considecation by the BOS. The attached policy was developed by the Town Administrator and Town

Accountant and has been presented at Department Head Staff Meetings snd has been vetted by Town

Counsel. I am respectfully recommending thnt the BOS consider voting to approve this Credit Card Policy

(See Attached).

Nuisance Bylaw Discussion:

Attached is the most recent DRAFI of the proposed Nuisance Bylaw for consideration by Town Meeting on

October 26, 2015. The attached DRAFT is the result of the interdepMtmentfiI review thnt was conducted

using the 'I own ofFramingham's Bylaw as a model. The attached Memo and DRAFT provides the

comments/changes from Departments as well as a plan of action in terms of next steps to move this forward

for Town Meeting consideration on October 26, 2015 (See Attached).

Attachments): Credit Card Policy

Nuisance Bylaw Memo and DRAFT (Revised)



Carly Antonellis

From: Mark R. Reich

Sent: Thursday, September 10, 2015 3:23 PM
To: Robert Pontbriand
Cc: Carly Antonellis
Subject: RE: DRAFT Credit Card Use Policy
Attachments: KP-#530859-vl-AYER,CredifCard_Policy.DOCX

Robert-

Attached is a redline version of the proposed credit card policy showing my recommended changes. Of primary concern
is that purchases be verified before final payment is made so as to satisfy the requirements of G.L. c. 41, sec. 56. I have

added a requirement that the Town Accountant verify receipt of goods and services.

I have deleted reference to purchase of food and payment for travel as I do not recommend encouraging such use of the

card system. This use could, of course, be approved is necessary based upon a particular need. In general, it is

important that the use of the cards not substitute for appropriate procurement procedures as the provisions of G.L. c.

30B and other financial safeguards and requirements shall continue to be applicable to Town purchases.

I note that the policy references possible disciplinary action for misuse of the cards. Please note that a policy providing

for such action may require union bargaining as it may impact employment conditions. You may wish to consider

revision of these provisions so as to avoid this issue.

Please contact me with any further questions regarding this matter.

Thank you.

Mark

Mark R. Reich, Esq.

Kopelman and Paige/ P.C.

101 Arch Street
12th Floor

Boston/MA 02110

This message and the documents attached to it, if any, are intended only for the use of the addresses and may contain

information that is PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL and/or may contain ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this communication in error/ please delete all electronic copies of this message and its attachments/ if

any/ and destroy any hard copies you may have created and notify me immediately.

From: Robert Pontbriand [mailto:ta@ayer.ma.us]
Sent: Wednesday, September 09, 2015 12:08 PM
To: Mark R. Reich
Cc: Carly Antonellis
Subject: FW: DRAFT Credit Card Use Policy



Town ofAyer
Credit Card Use Policy

1) Purpose
To establish the Policy and Procedures for the use of Town credit cEti'ds by department heads or

their designcc. These procedures are intended to accomplish the following;

• To ensure that procurement with credit cards is: accomplished pursuant to die policy and

procedures established by the Board of Selectmen . .

• To enhance productivity, signlficandy reduce papei-work, knptovc intetnal controls and

reduce the overall cost associated widi approved purchases as Ms ted below

• To ensure appropriate internal controls are established within each department procuring

with credit cards so that they are used for authorized purposes only

• To ensure that the Town beats no legal liability from iiia.ppi'opriate use of credit cards

2) Scope

The Town Administtator wiU inake aU. decisions, regarding the issuance of individual cards and

the estabii-shment of any and all additionftl controls of their use. The linnit on each ciird shall be

ROOO.OO.

3) Policy

A. The Town credit card.is only to be used iti the foUowing situations:

• Emergencies that are of a public safety nature

• Only Iffi purchase oi'der cannot be issued or cannot be p^id through the normal accounts

payable warrant process

• Charges for supplies and equipment shall not exceed $500 per item without appt'oval from

the Town Administrator

• Confcrcncc/TrfiiningRegistradon

• Other items specifically authorized by the Town Administrator

Town ofAyer Credit Card Use Policy
Page 1 of 6

Adopted by Board ofSclcctmcn on XXXXXX



B. The credit card wIU not be used for personal purchases of any kind. Use of credit cards for

personal purchases or expenses with the intention of reimbursing the Town is prohibited

and may result in disciplmaiy action.

C. Splitting of charges to avoid the $500 transaction limit (without approval of Town

Administrator) set fot the credit card is prohibited.

D. Department heads are required to authorize payment of die charge on their receipt. Tins

includes charges made by any designated individual.

E. No cash advances (ATM, U-avclci- s checks, money .ordcts, etc.) are allowed using the credit

card.

F. The credit card is not to be used to pay invoices or statements of iiny lund.

G. All purchiises nitide witli credit cards shall be paid for within the grace period so that no

interest charges or penalties wUl accrue.

I-I. Any incentive program benefits derived by the use of Town credit ciitds will be the propctfcy

of the town. The Town Administi-atoi- will determine the use of.such incentive program

benefits. . . .

I. All cardholders should take aH.measures necessary to ensure the security of the credit card

and die card number. Cardholders shaU not give their card or their card number to others to

use on their behalf.

J. Lack of proper documentation or audiorizadons may result in loss of credit card privileges

and/ot personal liability.

K. Misuse of a Town credit card by an iiuthouzed employee may result in loss of the credit card

tind/o-r disciplinary acdon against the einployee, up to and including termination of

employment.

L. The cardholder will provide aU. informadon required by the financial institudon issuing the

card in ordct to receive a Town credit card, including social security mforiTtation as required

by die Federal Patriot Act.

M. When using the credit card, the Town employee must ensure that the goods or sei-vices to be

purchased are budgeted iind allowable expenditui-'es. All unauthorized expenses will not be

Town ofAyer Credit Card Use Policy
Page 2 of 6

Adopted by Board ofSelectmen on XXXXXX



paid by the Town ofAycr, The Town irescrves the right to collect payment for unftuthorized

expenditures from the employee.

N. The employee is responsible for managing any returns or exchanges and ensurmg that

proper credit is received for tctumcd merchandise. The cardholder should review the next

statement to ensure that die return was properly credited.

0. The credit card is not to be used for personal purchases with the intent of reimbursement

afterwards. Random audits may be conducted for credit card activity and t-cccipt i-ctcndon

as wcU as other internal accounting controls.

P. It is the tcsponsibility of the employee to immediately no dfy die Town Administrator or his

designee of any lost or stolen ctcctit card.

Q. The Town ofAycr is a municipal government exempt from sales tax. .Sales tax should not

be included with the cost- of any pufchfise. Please be sure to have a copy of the Town;'s tax

exempt cettificate with you when making a purchase (See Appendix A). Sales tax costs

cannot be paid with Town funds. The individual makmg die purchase may be persomUy

responsible for payment of sales tax.

4) Procedure

A. Employees who need to use the credit card account must ask first for permission faoin- the

Town Administrator or Ms designee to be.plnced on the official list of authorized users.

B. Employees must sign out die credit card for use (See Appendix B) nnd maintain physical

possession of the card at all times. AU users must follow secure practices fot online credit

card use as detei-mined by the IT Director.

C. The Town ofAycf will be billed monthly on one statement, which wiU go to die Town

Accountant. Itemized receipts must be obtained by the cardholder and turned in to the

Town Accountant (either via cnwl scanned PDF or a hard copy) within one week of

purchase date. It is incumbent upon each department head to submit invoices to the

Accounting Department promptly so as to avoid interest fees and late charges. If receipts

arc submitted kte causing finance charges, the responsible patty may have the credit card use

revoked.

D. The Town Accountant shaU- verify that goods and/or services purchased with the credit card

have been received by the Town prior to authorizing payment.

E. The credit card will be reconciled monthly by the Town Administra for /Accounting Office

for unaudiorlzed charges and other disctepnncics.

Town of Ayer Credit Catd Use Policy
Page 3 of 6

Adopted by BoiU-d of Selectmcn on XXXXXX



F. The use of the credit card is a privilege but also requit'cs greater vigilance and tesponsibility.

Employees must follow aU. existing procedures set forth by the Town Administrator's Office

iind the Accounting Office for their purchases or face disciplmaiy measures including

dismissal, repayment of unauthorised expenditures and criminal charges.

G. Each authorized cardholder must sign an Agtccment to Accept Town Credit Card prior to

issuance of the credit card. Forms wUl be kept on file in the Town Accountants Office.

H. When using the Town credit card, the authorized cardholdet shaU.:

• Determine if the intended purchase is within die cardholder's credit ciitd UmUs.

• Infotm the merchant that the purchase is tax exempt. The tax exempt number is 046-

001-078. Review the receipt befote leaving the store and request a credit if taxes were

charged in error. (Sec Appendix A)

• Obtain an itemi'zed receipt for all purchases

I. It is the cardholder's responsibility to retain the receipts and other documentation.

j. Upon separation of employment, ciitdholders shaU surrender their Town credit card to the

Town Administrator on or before their last day of work and prior to issuance of final

compensation to the cardholder.

5) Audits

Random audits will be conducted for both card activity iind receipt retention iis well as statement

review by the Finance Department The detailed activity is also reviewed annuatly by the town's

independent auditmg firm.

6) Authority

These policies are adopted by the Board of Selcctmen as die Town's Chief Executive Officer in
accordflnce with MGL c. 4, see. 7, cl. 'Fifth B as it telatos to thetf management of the Town s

prudential affairs and their authority over expendituics.

Jannlce L. Livingston, Chaii- GaiyJ. Luca, Vice-Chau'

Christopher R. Hilltoan, Clerk
TOWN OF AVER
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Town ofAyer Credit Card Use Policy
Page 4 of 6

Adopted by Board of Selectmen on XXXXXX



APPENDIX A

ST.2 MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF nEVENUE

CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION

<^^

CeiUf 1c alien i* huruby maa» inai \hv OfQanIiallon llortln nimcri ie (in axuirpl putcl'asuf undnf Oanfliul Laws, Ctsftptoi 04H, Sgctione li{d}
and (of, Alt (iiiiohnsas of tangibio pofsonal pioptitty by Hiit ufflanftditon diu ??ipl li<"* lanmiiin wviar anfd chaplat lo liid sxtonl Ihnt
auoh piopoily is usgo In iha conduct of tha uutlrissi o( iho pu'chBBgr. Any ubuso or mkus^ o[ ihfs caiitNcaK) bv any lix.axompi
orSBnliflHon ut <tnf unaulhofliad uan o) Ihis tuflKicalB Uy any Individual conttltufoB a sufloua vloludon anti wlli loaU fci (i'^ncutluit,
WIDfu! flilsutb ot llila CcrtlffiiaKi is! Eitoinplton )» (ubiflol lu cflminul itancOcni o! up lo 1 yfliif In ptitort nnd ttO.&SO (tSO.OOO tof
corpoclioni) In !lnn», (Suu iuvu(s» tftfoi.

TOWN 01^ AYER
OTiE MAIN STREET
AYEIl, MA 01432

NOTASS[aNABLEOaTRAHSi:Et<At)t.t:

EXEMPnONNUUOEHe
o/f6"ooi-oys

ISSUE OATU
01-02-90

CliHTtFICAVefiXPtHR'iyH

NONE

COMMISSION tin or nuvgNue

STEPHEN W. KIDUER

Town ofAyer Credit Card Use Policy
Page 5 of 6

Adopted by Board of Sdectmen on XXXXXX



APPENDIX B

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION
AGREEMENT TO ACCEPT TOWN CREDIT CARD

I, , _,___^,^_ , hereby acknowledge receipt of a Town of Ayef Ctcdit Catd, numbct

(First and Last N'Aine)

(Last Foul- Digits of Credit Card)

As a. Ciitdholde-c, I agree to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the

pjL'ovisions of die Town ofAycr Credit Card Use Policy, as may subsequently be tevised. I

acknowledge receipt of die Policy and I have read and undetstand its terms and conditions. I

understand the Town ofAyer is liable to the financial, msUtution for all charges made by me,

As the holder of this credit card, I iigrcc to accept t'esponsibili-ty for die protection and proper use of

tliis card as outlined in the regulations. I understand that the Town wiU audit the use of this credit

catd. I understand that I am responsible for tetaining all receipts for processing to. the Finance

Departmenfc and that faiku'e to provide receipts may result in persoml liability. I uridetstand that I
cannot use the credit c^i-d for personal use even if the intent is to L-eimburse the Town. I understand

the use of die card docs not circumvent the Town's Purchasing Policy.

I furthci: understand that improper use of this credit card may result in disciplinaiy action, up to and

including termination of employment and in accordance with fipplicable Collective Bargaining
Agreement and/or Town Personnel Policy. I also agree to aUow the Town ofAyer to collect any

amounts owed by me even if I am no longer employed by the Town.

If die Town initiates legal proceedings to recover amounts owed by me under this Agreement, I

agree to pay all legal fees incurred by the Town in such proceedings.
I undctstand die Town may fcermina.te my rights to use this credit card at any time for any reason,

I agree to t'ctum die credit card to the Town- of Aycr immediately upon request or upon termimdon

of employment.

Cardholder Date

Department Head Authorization (If cardholder is dcsignce) Date

Town Admimsttator Date

Town Accountant Date

Town ofAyer Credit Card Use Policy

Page 6 of 6
Adopted by Board of Selectmen on XXXXXX



Board of Selectmen
MEETING TUESDAYS AT 7:00 P.M. < UPPER TOWN HALL 1 MAIN STREET • AVER, MASSACHUSETTS 01432

Tel. (978) 772-8220
Fax. (978) 772-3017

Town Administrator
(978)772-8210

MEMORANDUM

DATE: September 10, 2015

TO: Ayer Board of Selectmcn

FROM: Robert A. Pontbriand

town Administtator

SUBJECT: DRAFT Pfoposal to Update/Amend the Nuisance Bylaw

Dear Honorable Selectmen,

Attached is the most recent DRAFT Proposal to Update/Amend the Town's Nuisance Bylaw. The

attached DRAFT incorporates the changes/comments/suggestions as a result of the

interdepartmental review of the Ftamingham. Bylaw which was used as the model. The attached

DRAFT includes aU of the "track changes" for your review.

In terms of next steps, in order to keep with the BOS fcimeline of inclusion on the Special FaU. Town

Meeting Warrant, it is i-espectfutty recon-miended that the BOS authorize this DRAFT to be

reviewed by Town Counsel. Upon receipt of Town's CounseFs legal review it will be tmnstnittcd foi:

one final dcpiii'tmental review.

At the October 6 BOS upon die legal review and final departmental review, the BOS would then

respcctfuUy approve the proposed Bylaw amendment language for inclusion on the Special FaU

Town Meedng Wm'^int for Town Meeting to consider on Octobet 26,2015.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly.

Thank you.

Attachment: DRAFT Proposal to Update/Amend the Nuisance Bykw (with track changes)



Town ofAyer

DRAFT
Nuisance By-Law Proposal

JVpd.ited DRAFT to Inchnle Track Chfinges us a Result of Departmentnl Review

9/10/20151
Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Ttalic

1. AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

Pursuant to the general powers granted to cities and towns by Article 89 of the Amendments to the

Massachusetts Constitution, and the specific powers granted by Massachusetts General Laws,

Chapter 139, Sections 1-3A, dlls Bylaw is adopted for the prevention of future nuisances and the
removal of existing nuisanceii within die Town, which nuisances constitute a hazard of blight, or

adversely affect property values.

2. DEFINITIONS

A) BUght - Any condition that seriously impairs die value, condition, strength, durability or

appearance of real property, including real property owned "r occupied by an Interested
Party as defined in section 2E.

B) Building - A structure, whether portable or fixed, with exteuor walls or ficewalls and a roof,

built) erected or framed, of a combmatlon of any materials, to form shelter for persons,

animals, or property. Also, see 2J.

C) Dilapidated - A condition of decay or partial ruin by reason of neglect, misune, or
deterioration. The term includes, but is not limited to:

Property having deteriorated^ in^ftL'cUvc.' wafL-qM'oofin^ (>t\':<t(.'i'i()r wsill.', roofs

foundations or floors, including broken CM inadequately secured windows or doors;

property having defective weather protection (such as paint, stain, siding or
tarpauUn) for exterior wall covering; deleterious weatheung due to lack of such

weather protection other protective covering;

Personal property that is broken, rusted, worn, partially or wholly diiimanded or

otherwise due to deterioration is unsuitable for the purpose for which designed.

D) Ha2ard - A condition likely to expose persons to injury, or property to damage, loss or
destruction.

E) Interested Parties - In connection with the notification requii-'ements of tins bylaw Interested

Parties are the Building Commissioner, nwner(s) and/or occupants of property which is the
subject of a hearing; nwners anct/or occupants of property dkecdy opposite the subject

property on any public or private street or way, owners ancl/or occupants of property

Comment [rapl]: Rrcoitundidfd n.-movcd pL'f
Ijuflduig Cummlssiuiicc.

Comment [rap2]: Recommended runnw) pe
Bntkling Commissioner as being uvfrr^cliuig.

1



abutting the subject ptoperty, and owners and/or occupantK of property abutting, and that is

within 300 feet of, the property line of the subjected property. Other persons who own nr
occupy propetty and who demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Building Commissiuner that

they are affected by the condition of the property or building that is the subject of a hearing
may be i-'egai'ded as Interested Patties by the Buildmg Commissioner,

F) Nuisance - Any substantial interference with the common interest of the general pubUc in
the maintaining decent, safe, and sanitary st-mctures that are not dilapidated, and

neighborhoods, when such interference results from the hazardous or blighted condition of

private property, land or buildings. [\nv substandal interference with any public place, street
or puvafe way_to include the placement of snow, ice and any other debm that interferes

with safe passage on any public roadwayor KJdcwdlk. The fact thata particulair sti'ncture or

use may be permittetl under the Zoning Bylaw does not create an exemption from the

application of this bylaw. The term includes but is not limited to:

(a) burned structures not otherwise lawfully habltable or usable,

|(b) dilapidated real or purnonal property,

(c) dangerous or unsafe sfcmctures or personal property,

(d) overgrown vegetation which may harbor rats and vermin, conceal pools of
stagnant water or other nuisances, or which is otherwise detrknenfal to neighboring

properties or property values,

(e) dead, decayed, diseased or hazardous trees, debris or trash,

(f) signs rhat block or obscure rhe line «f;utt- for vchicnlar and/dr pedestL-ian n-affic

cd in scct-inn'XXofthesisn-by'lftw,

(g) personal property that is exposed to the elements without protection against
deterioration, rust or dilapitlation,

(h) vehicles, machinery or mechanical eqmpment or parte thereof diat are located on

soil, grass or other porouy surfaces that may result in the destruction of vegetation or

contamuiation of soil,

^Reftidencc District, krepin^ of more thtm-one-emnmefeial vehicle, or of!

tractor thaf excccda ;i gro;>;'> vehicle; weight of rlu-ef-tjuartcrs (3/4) of a ton for

hiuilin^ a van or IrailtT ;r< defined by the-Rc^istiy "f Motoi.' V7t;hifleK,

1'eperty that: has been placed for the •collection as-^ttbbish •or rcfLisc in

violation ofArdclc VI, section 4.1 of the Town-Bylaws other than as approved by
the-Dircctor of Public Works, or left m pubUc-vicw for more than seven days.

Comment [rap3]: Expandi-d tu cover public and
private ways as well as sidm'alks per Police Chief.

Comment [rap4]: Rcmin'cd pcc Building
Ccunmissioncc as beinn loo vngiic and ovenKiching

Comment [rap5]: Town dues not have sfpnratc
Sign Bylaw in terms of placement, etc. on public lands.

This provisions would addtfss signs that create a
nuistnce in lcnns of line of sight.

Comment [rap6]; Removed as abnndoned
vehicles aie covered uildn die Town s

abandoned/u ntcgistc red vdiidc bylaw

Comment [CMA7]: Deleted because appears to bf
Sjiccific to I1'raitlingiiaitl



G. Occupant - A person who occupies real property with the consent (if the owner as a lessee,

tenant at will, licensee or otherwise. The singula): use of the term includes the plural when

the context so indicates.

H. Owner - Every person who alone or jointly or severally with others (a) has legal title to any

buildmg, structure 01: property to this Bylaw; or (b) has care, charge, or control of any such

building structure or property in any capacity including but not limited to agent, executor,
cxecuti'ix, administrator, admmistratrix, trustee or guai-'dian of the estate of the holder of

legal tide; or (c) lessee under a written letter agreement; or (d) mortgage in pniwession; or (e)
agent, trustee or other person appointed by the courts.

I. Responsible Party - The owner nr occupant (in the case of real property) of property that is
the subject of proceedings under this by-law. The singular use of the term includes the plm-al

when the context so indicates.

J. Structure - A combination of materials, whether whoUy or pardally level with, above 01:
below the surface of the ground, whethet permanent or temporary, assembled at a fixed

location to give support, shelter or enclosure such as a building, (see above), fmirmvnrk,

retaining wall, stand, platform, bin, fence (having a height st any point of six feet nr greater

above grade), parking area sign, flagpole, or mast for an antenna or the like.

3. ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

A. This Bylaw shaU be enforced by the Building Commissioner nnd/or tin Police Dep:u'tmenr.
I'he Bo;u'<J oflleiilfh '.md/or K;ishoba Boards of IIealrh shsill rnforcf this bylsiw as it rclntrs

r" rhc St;itc S;inifni'\- (^odc.

If the Building Commissioner iind/or rhe Police Dfp;irtm<;nt shaU be informed or have

reason to believe that any provision of tills Bylaw has been, is being, or is Ukely to be
violated, he shaU make or cause to be made an investigation of the facts, including an

investigation of the property where the violation may exist. If he finds any violation he shall
give immediate notice in writing Eo the Owner and to the Occupant of the premises and

shaU immediately cease. In making such inspection, the Building Commissionei.' ;incl/or

Police Department shall have such right of access to premises that may be lawfully exercised

by him under the laws and constitution of the Commonwealth or of the United States.

If, after such notice and order, such violation continued, or if any Owner or Occupant fails

to obey any lawful order of the Building Commisisumer with respect to any violation of the

provisions of the Bykw, the Building Commissioner may make complaint to the Superloi-
Court or any court of competent Jurisdiction an any injunction or order restraining any

further use of the premises and the continuation of the violation and shall take such other

action as is necessary to enforce the provisions ofthiK Bylaw.

In addition to the foregoing remedy, whoever violates any provision of this Bylaw or fails to
obey any lawful order issued by the BuUding Commisniontir sind/or Police Deptirrment in
enforcing this Bylaw shall be liable to a |fine of not more than three hundred (5300.00) for

Comment [rap8]: Enforcement c);i>;indc(l to
incSnde Police Department anri BOII and Naslioba
Boards ofHralth (when State Samlacy Code is
involveiQ per Police Chief and Building Commissinn
tu expand authonty.



each viokdon. Each violation of this Bylaw shall constitute a separate offense. Each day that

any such violation continues shall constitute a separate offcnse.

The Building Commissioner may require diiiclosure to him/her of the identity (if the person

bringing a complaint of nuisance. The Building Commissioner may require that such
complaint be made under oath or subject to the penalties of perjury. If the Building
Commissioner determines that a reported condition may warrant immediate action,

constitute a substanrial violation of this Bylaw, or adversely affect protected interests of

others than the complainant, the Building Commissioner may commence action undei: this

Bylaw without requiring the disclosure of the identity of the complainant.

If the Building Commisiiioner determines fhat the condition is subject to the jurisdicUon of
fhe Board of Health or is a violation of the State Sanitary Code or any health regulation, in
addition to enforcing this Bylaw, he shall refer the flnatter to the Bnsuxl of fTenlthRH'eetw-

Public IIculth of the town tind/or the appropriate slate t>r town officials for action.

During his investigation of the matter, the Building Commissioner may consult, but is not

required to do so, with any Interested Party in an attempt to obtain voluntary compUance

with this Bylaw without the need to IKSUG a notice of violation.

B. ^Notice to Complainant - In any matter in which a complaint has been made by a person

other than die Building Commissioner, the Building Commissioner shaU pmmpdy notify the
complainant in advance of all confei.-ences or proceedings concerning resolution of the

nuisance complaint or of any enforcement action and the complainant shall be allowed to be

present and to be heard.

C. Removal ofNuisance by Selectmen- If the ReHpnnKJble Party fails to remedy the
nuisance upon notice from the Bmldlng Commissioner to do so, the Board ofSelectmen

may cause the nuisance to be removed as provided in General Laws c. 139.

D. ^.eview by the Town Admmistrator - Any Interested Party who has filed a written
complaint of a nuisance with the Building Commissioner upon which complaint the Building

Commissioner has determined that the condition is not a. nuisance, or has taken other action

that the Interested Patty claxms is inadequate shaU have a right to a review "f the matter by
the Town Administrator. At the request of Kuch an Interested Party, the Town

Administirator shatt confer with the Building ComrnisKlcmer sinc.l/oiLthc Pf^licf Dcpnrtmcnt

and shall recommend appropriate acdon to the Building Commissinncr and to the Board of

Selectmen.

B. R_eports by Building- Cprnmissioner - The BuildmgConimissioner shall file with the
Town Administrator each month a report that iihall include all complaints of nuisance made
to him during the prior month; aU proceedings begun by him under this Bylaw; aU pending
complaints and all investigations and enforcement actions taken by him or referred to the
CommisKioner of Public Health, The report shall state the location of the premises, a

summaiy of the nature of the complaint, fhe name of the Responsible Party(ies), and the

disposition or the status of the matter.

Comment [rap9]: InCHnfuananCL'u'itlllln
Town s Nnn-Criminal Dispnsitinn Bylaw

-{Formatted; Font: Bold, Underiine

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underiine

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font; Bold, Underitne



General Laws: CHAPTER 32B, Section 9A1/2 Page 1 of 1

TH!': l89 GENKRAI, COURT OF

THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETFS

Home Glossary FAQs

{site '.esrch

Options | GO!

Massachusetts Laws Bills State Budget People Committees Reports Educate & Engage

Home Biiis&Laws Laws General Laws PART! TITLE IV CHAPTER 32B Seclion 9At/2

Events

Ma.ssaclui.sc Lts Laws

Massachusetts ConstiiLttion

Genera! Laws

Session Laws

Rules

General Laws

CHAPTER 32B

ADMINISTRATION OF THE GOVERNMENT

CIVIL SERVICE, RETIREMENTS AND PENSIONS

CONTRIBUTORY GROUP GENERAL OR BLANKET INSURANCE FOR
PERSONS IN THE SERVICE OF COUNTIES, CITIES, TOWNS AMD
DISTRICTS, AND THEIR DEPENDENTS

Section 9A1/2 Reimbursement of governmental unit for heaithcare premium
contribution received by retiree with creditabie service attributable to
service in one or more other governmental units

MyLegislature

Print Page

PREV NEXT

fREV MEXT

[Text of section applicable as provided by 2010, 131, Sec. 200.7

Section 9A1/2, Whenever a retired employee or beneficiary receives a healthcare premium

contribution from a governmental unit in a case where a portion of the retiree's creditabfe

service is attributable to service in 1 or more other governmental units, the first governmental

unit shall be reimbursed in full, in accordance with this paragraph, by the other governmental

units for the porUon of the premium contributions that corresponds to the percentage of the

retiree's credifcabfe service that is attributable to each governmental unit. The other

governmental units shall be charged based on their own contribuUon rate or the contribution

rate of the first employer, whichever is lower.

The treasurer of the first governmental unit shail annually, on or before January 15, upon the

certification of the board of the system from which the disbursements have been made, notify

the treasurer of the other governmental unit of the amount of reimbursement due for the

previous fiscal year and the treasurer of the other govemmentai unit shall immediately take

ali necessary steps to insure prompt payment of this amount. In default of any such payment,

the first governmental unit may maintain an action of contract to recover the same, but there

shalf be no such reimbursement if the 2 systems involved are the state employees' retirement

system and the teachers' retirement system.

.'SHpw/HmeSiifiMsip

Copyright © 2015 The General Court, A!l Rights Reserved

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIV/Chapter32B/Section9Al~2 9/11/2015



Town ofAyer

Boatd ofSelectmen

Ayer Town Hall — 1st Floor Meeting Room

Ayer, MA 01432

Tuesday September 1, 2015

Meeting Minutes

Broadcast and ^corded byAPAC

Present: Janmce L. Livmgston, Chair; Gary J. Luca, Vice-Chair; Chrlstoplier R. PItllman, Clerk

Robert A. Pontbriand. Town Admmistoitor , .

Carly M. Antonellis, Assistant to the Town Administrator ;

Call to Order: J. livingston called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.

Review andApprove Agenda: R. Pontbriand asked to amend the agenda by adding undet his teport an- update on the Sex

Offender Residency Bylaw given the Massachusetts Supreme Coytf's decision made last week.

Motion: A motion was made by C. Htllman and seconded by G. Luca to approve the agenda as amended. Motion passed 3-

0,

Announce ments: J. Livingston announced the Recycle Your Reusables event that will take place on Saturday Octobef 1.7,
2015 faom 9:00 AM - 2:00 PM at the Ayer Shii-ley Middle School located ? Shirley.

Public Input: None

Supetintendent MarkWetzel, Department of Public Wotks: request for Sewer Abatement— M. Wetzel inu-oduced Mi-.

Robert CoUins from the Hillside Mobile Home Park, located at 25 Groton School Road, Mr. CoUIns is requesting an

abatement for his sewet service that resulted faom a freeze-up and subsequent leak at an unoccupied property in the mobile
home park. M. Weteel stated that he reviewed the past 6 years of.past usage records and determined the abatement amount

($2,453.82 for sewer only).

Motion: A motion was made by C. HiUman and seconded by G. Luca to approve the abatement in the amount of ^2,453,82

for only sewer charges at 25 Groton School Road. MQtiQn_passed 3-0.

^Approva/ ofMOUforJARRea/fy—As part of the .expansion of their facility, ]AK Realty/ Catanla Spagna is seeldng to enter into

a Memctfandum of Understanding (MOU), The MOU will address the relocation of a water and sewet line in an existing
easement. JAR Realty and the Town will. eliminate the current easements, iiftcr the new pipes are in the ground and the meets

and bounds are drawn up for the new easement agreement.

approval of Drainage Ease?w/ffforjylR. Realty — M.. Wetzel explained that ]AR Realty was seeking a drainage easement for their

roof drains only. He explained further that when the land was given to the Town by San-Val, future occupants would have

rights to discharge drainage at certain location, on the site.

Motion: A motion was made by G. Luca and seconded by C. Hillman to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with

JAR Realty, as outlined by the DPW Superintendent. Motion passed 3-0.

J. Livmgston asked M. Wetzel about the status of the Stony Btook Pumping station project. M. Wetzel stated die project is on

schedule and that all the parts have been ordered.

Page 1 of 3
Boatd of Selcctmen Meeting Minutes

September 1,2015



Motion: A motion was made by G. Luca and seconded by C. Hlllman to approve the drainage easement between the Town
ofAyet and ]AK Realty in accordance with the deed conditions set forth in the 1982 land ttansfer and outlined by the DPW

Superintendent. Motion passed 3-0.

Intention to layout M.nlbery Circle^ Calvin St Extension, filueberry Circle, Hibisws Laffe, M.agnolia Dnve and Samantha Law — Town

Engineei: Dan Van Schalkwyk joined M. Wetzel to discuss the process of accepting a number of streets that have not been
formally accepted by Town Meeting. R, Pontbriand added that this is part of a larger project, as set forth by the BOS for

Town Administrator's 2015 Goals and Objectives, M. Wetzel stated that the stceets are generally m good condition and the

infrastructure has been spot checked.

Motion: A motion was made by G. Luca and seconded by C. HiUman the intent to layout Mulberry Circle, Calvin St

Extension, Blueberry Circle, Htbiscus Lane, Magnolia Drive and Samantha Lane arid send recommendation to the Planning

Board. Motion passed 3"0.

Transfer Station Update— M. Wetzel stated that the paving upgrades needed at the Transfer Station were more involved than

originaUy thought. The Town needs DEP approval because a portion. of the paving -wiU be done on the capped landfill. Also,

the Town teceived no bidders. He is working with the Inspectot, GeneraFs Office to tebid the project,

Ms. Alicia Hetsey, Office of Communifry Development: Ms. Hersey was In attendance to irequest a lien subordination on

case #04-271. The owners are refinancing to obtain a more favorable interest i'ate and the equity taken from the home is to

cover the signing costs.

Motion: A motion was made by G. Luca and seconded by C. HtUman to approve the lien subordination request In the

amount of $214,194 on case #04-271, as outlined byA,,Hersey, Motion passed 3-0.

Chief Robert Pedfazzi, Aver Fife Depattment: Chief Pedrazzl expl&hied that the. Ftfe Departm-ent is in receipt of a

donation in the amount of <t5/)00 from P & P Willow Ttust to provide equipment for Fire Department Use. Accordmg to

Town Counsel, the gift needs to be.formally accepted by the Board,of Selecttnen,

Motion: A motion was made by C. HUlman and seconded by G, Luca to accept the gift in the amount of $5,000 from F & P

Willow Trust for Fire Department use. Motion passed 3-0.

Senator Jamie Eldridge, Rep. Jen Benson and Rep. SheJla Hattington: Senator Eldridge and Representatives Benson

and Hamngton wete in attendance to give a Beacon HiU. Leglskdvc update as well as provide time for a Q & A with the Board
and town residents.

Senator Eldudge gave a brief overview of the state's FY (16 budget process.

Repi'esentative Benson gave an update of her committee assignments; as well as relevant legislation that would affect the

Town of Ayer such as the Public Records law.

Rep. Harrington also spoke about the public records law legislation and the possibility that it would change if it is reported

out, as the MMA Is opposition to die biU. She also highlighted the Governor's Community Compact program.

The Board and the Delegation. then spoke about progress of the Commuter Rail Surface Lot project The Board and the

Delegation agreed to keep in contact as the process moves forward.

G. Luca asked a.bout a project that -was funded by fomier Senator Pam Resor m the 2004 Transportation Bond Bill relative to

improvements at the intersection of 2A/WiUo\v Road. The delegation asked the Town to send more information and they

would look into it.

Page 2 of 3
Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes

September 1,2015



Msiy Spinnet, 18 Myrick Street spoke about her concern with DCP services and was concerned about the children In the
Commonwealth. She stated that the state needs to evaluate potential foster parcnts with moi-'e sci-'utiny.

C. HIUman added that the Ayer Shirley Regional Schools were doing great and encoura.ged them to visit the new high school.

Town Admimstfatot^s Repott: R. Pontbriand suggested in the interest of time, the Board take up the appointment of the

fecommended candidate for the Conservation Administrator position.

Consei-varion Commission members Jcss Gugino and George Bacon were in attendance to introduce Mr. Brian Colleiran. Pie

was intetviewed by the Consen^ation Commission and is their recommended candidate for the Conservation. Adfflinistrator.

Motion: A motion was made by G. Luca and seconded by C. Hillman to appoint .Mr. Brian Colleran to the position of

Consei^ation Agent with the start date of September 8, 2015. Motion passed3-0.

R. Pontbriand stated that he had received a letter of interest from Ms. Bonnle Tillotson. seeking appointment to the

Conservation Commission.

Motion: A motion was made by G. Luca and seconded by C, HIUman to appoint Ms. Bonnie TiUotson to the Conservadon

Commission to fill a vacant seat, term to expire June 30, 2017, Motion passed 3-0.

R. Pontbriand then went over his Administradve Update, highlighting major activities and projects that are cutrently ongoing

in Town Hall. Mis update included the Town Hall .carpet rcplacemetit project, the Non-Union Cotnpensadon Study, the

Comprehensive Plan, proposed update to the nuisance bylaw and the opening of the 2015 — 2016 school year.

R. Pontbriand then advised the Board that as a result of the ruUng of the Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court (SJC) on

Friday, August 28, 2015 In the case of Doe, et. al. v. City ofLynn, the i-uling of the SJC has rendered sex offender residency
bylaws (such as the Town ofAyer's) uncofistitutional and •unenforceable actoss the Commonwealth. As a result, the Town-

has been advised by the Chief of Police, Town Counsel, and the Massachusetts PoUce Chiefs Association. not to enforce the

Town's Sex Offender Residency Bylaw pending .furthei: actioti by tHe Massachusetts Legislatute. The Board authorized the

Town Administtatof to issue a public notification (to include the :fuU. decision of the SJC in Doe v. City of Lynn) regarding this

matter. . .

The Board expressed their disappointment in the decision and asked that the information be disseminated to residents with

the assistance of.the Ayer Police D.epattment. .

Apptoyal of the M.imites:

Motipn: A motion was made by C, HiUman ,qnd seconded by J. Livingston. to approve the meeting minutes from August 11,
2015. Motion passed 3-0.

Adjournment: :

Motioti: A motion was made by C. HiUmah and seconded by J. Llvingston to adJouL-n at 9:10 PM. Motion passed 3-0.

Minutes Recorded and Submitted by Cariy M. Antonellis

Date Minutes Approved by BOS:

Chtistophet R. Hillman, Clerk:

Page 3 of 3
Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes

September 1, 2015


